B R MAHESWARI & CO LLP e
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 43402222

Email: brme@brmeo.com

To the Members of TMF Holdings Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have andited the accompanying standalone financal statements of TMF Holdings Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as  at March 31, 2025, and the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including matetial accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in
the mannet so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehenstve
income (comptising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted ourauditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (S:As) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibiliies under those Standards are further descrbed in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current petiod. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our repott.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Statements

Information Technology (“IT”) Systems and controls impacting Standalone Financial

The Company’s financial reporting process is
heavily reliant on a complex I'T environment.

Key financial reporting systems are interfaced with
each other, and aatomated processes are used for
recording and processing a high volume of
transactions. Given the pervasive use of [T and the
significant volume of transactions processed, the

Our procedures with respect to this matter

included the following:

» Obtained an understanding of the IT control
environment relevant to financial reporting;

% Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of key IT general controls over

integrity and relability of I'T systems and related
controls are critical to the accurate preparation of
the standalone financial statements.

We identified IT systems and controls as a key
audit matter because of the;

»  High dependency on automated controls
and systern-generated data;

»  Risks associated with unauthorized access
ot changes to systems and data;

» Potential impact on financial reporting in
the event of deficiencies in IT general
controls (ITGCs), including user access
management, change management, and
program development.

user access management, program changes, and
other relevant ateas,

» Performed testing of automated controls and
key system interfaces used in financial reporting;

¥ Assessed the reliability of system-generated
reports and data used in substantive audit
procedures;

¥ Involved our IT specialists to support the audit
procedures in evaluating system configurations
and access controls.

Based on the procedures performed, we did not
identify any material exceptions in the design or
operating effectiveness of I'T controls that would
impact the standalone financial statements.

Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The othet information
comprises the infomation included in the Annual Report, but does aot include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditot's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or out knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conchude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations.



Responsibilites of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial
statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
standalone financil positon, standalone financial performance, changes in equity and standalone cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In prepating the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Cornpany’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

8. Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arnise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonsbly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud ot error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence thatis sufficient and approptiate to, provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of nternal control.

e Obrain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such conttols.

e [Dwvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estitnates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to



modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events ot conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
4 going concern.

® Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

i1. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

12. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report hecause the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

13. The Standalone Financial Statements of the company for the year ended March 31,2024 were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated May 02,2024, expressed
an unmodified opinion on those standalone financial statement.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Goverment of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordet, to the extent applicable.

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

() We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

®) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated n paragraph 15¢h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the standalone Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.



ff) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 15(h){(vi)
below on reporting under Rute 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

()

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Repott in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1

vi.

'The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial statements;

‘The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any matetial foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts due to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company;

{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
those disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material cither individually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premiwm or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether tecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Notes to accounts to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any petson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and approptiate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clavse (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. The Audit Trail has been
maintained as per the statutory requirements for records retention as per proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the companies {Accounts Rules) 2014.



16. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V' to the Act.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001035 /N500050
Digitally signed by

AKSHAY AXSHAY MAHESHWAR!
MAH ES HWARI Date: 2025.05.10

212610 +0530°
Akshay Maheshwar
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: New Delbi
Drate: May 10,2025



Annexute A to Independent Auditor’s Repott

Referred to in paragraph 15 () of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of TMY Holdings Limited on the
standalone financial stacements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TMF Holdings Limited
(“the Company”} as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial repotting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal contro) stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Gver
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“TCAT™). These tesponsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adheterice to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely pteparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statermeryts based on out audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of intemnal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of intemnal financial controls and both
issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and pexform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in allmaterial respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and theit operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls wich reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements, assessing the tisk that a matenal weakness exists, and
testing and evaaating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control hased on the assessed risk,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external pueposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pettain



to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions ate recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statemnents in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthotised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a2 matesial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to fimancial staternents and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by ICAL

For B R Maheswati & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number:001035N /IN500050

Digitally signed by

AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWARI
MAHESHWARI Date: 2025.05.10

21:26:36 +05'30"

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Numbex:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 10,2025



Annexute B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in pasagraph 14 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of TMFE Holdings Limited on the
standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025

In temms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of
account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief,
we report that:

i (@ (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, iIncluding quantitative details and
situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i}(a)(B) of the Order 15
not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management
during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee}, as disclosed in the standalone financial
statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year, Consequently, the
question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer,
or specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value
of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment does not arise. The Company does not have any Right of
Use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is notapplicable to that extent.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have heen initiated
on ot pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benamu
Property Tunsactions Aet, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on
whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financial statements does
not arise.

ii. (2) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any inventory.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(2) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{h) Dwuring the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,
in apgregate, at any point of tme duting the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of cutrent assets and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(k) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii. (a) Based on ourexamination and the information and explanations given to us, reporting under clause 3(iif) (a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with
the Reserve Bank of India engaged in the business of granting loans.

{b) Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, in respect of the aforesaid
investments / loans, in our opinion, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted/
investments were made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not made an
advance in loans / given any guarantee / provided any securities.



©

In respect of the aforesaid loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) In respect of the loans, there does not exist any overdue amount remaining outstanding as at March 31,

(e)

®

Vi.

vii. {a)

(b}

viit.

ix. (2)

2025,

Based on our examination and the information and explanations given to us, reporting under clause 3 (i) (e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company as it is a non-banking financial company registered with
the Reserve Bank of India, engaged in the business of granting loans.

The loans granted during the year, including o promoters/related parties had stipulated the scheduled
repayment of principal and payment of interest and the same wete tepayable on demand, details of which
are mentioned below:

) B o {Amount in Cr)
Particulars o |  AllPardes | Promoters Related parties
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances '
in nature of loans [

- Repayable ondemand (&) | 205.65 - 205.65
- Agreement does not speafy | - I Yi=
any terms ot period of

repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 205.65 - 205.65
Percentage of loans/ advances in 100% - 100%
nature of loans to the total loans

In our opinion, during the year, the Company has neither provided any loans, guarantces, nor securities in
connection with any loan extended to its directors or to any other persons in whom the directors are
interested. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) are not
applicable to the Company. The provisions of sub-sections (2) to (11) of Seetion 186 are not applicable to
the Company 2s 1t is 2 non banking financial company registered with the RBI, engaged in the business of
granting loans.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Further, the
provisions of sub-section (1} of Section 73 are not applicable to the Company as it is a non-banking
financial company registered with RBI, engaged in the business of granting loans.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including goods
and services tax, income tax, cess, and other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authonties.

According to the informationt and explanation given to us, there are no dues of ingcome tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues outstanding on account of any dispute by the company.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or
disclosed asincome dusing the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
to any lender during the year.



)

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, the Company has not availed for any term loan. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the
Otrder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on
an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds
raised on shott-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, if any.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary,
assodciates, joint ventures, if any.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt mnstruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentutes during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x){b}) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance

with the genemally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143{12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended) was
not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xt)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) Durng the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company cartied out in accordance

xv. (a}

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has not received any whistle-blower
complaints durtng the year.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting
under clause 3(xit) of the Otder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in complance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Refer note 34 to the standalone financial statements.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

{b} The tepozts of the Internal Auditor for the petiod under audit have been considered by us.



XV,

xvi. (a)

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with them. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the
Act under dause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(b} The Company has conducted non-banking financial activities during the year and the Company holds a

©

(d)

Xvill,

valid Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.

The Company is a Cote Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of Indiz and has obtained registration with RBI as per the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions 2016. The Company has complied with all the directions provided in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions 2016 as updated from time to time along with periodical
filings with RBI.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) (“the group™) has four CIC
which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and one CIC which is not required to be
registered with the RBI.

The Company has incurred cash losses in the preceding financial vear (FY 2023-24) amounting to
Rs.120.93 Cr. and during the current financial year amounting to Rs.162.64 Crores.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the statutory auditors of the Company Sudit K
Parekh & Co. LLP have resigned duting the year. We have taken into consideration the issues, objections,
or concerns raised by the cutgoing auditors, while forming our opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

On the basis of the financial to the Standalone Financial Statements, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to cur attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a pertod of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is notan assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ali liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will ger discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

xx. (a) There are noother than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount

b)

remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{(xx)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.



xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Srandalone Financial
Statements. Accordingly, no cornment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For B R Maheswari LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 001035N/N500050
Digitally signed by

AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWARI
MAHESHWAR] Dete: 202505.10

21:26:59 +0530°

Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25504704BMIBFV2828

Place: INew Delhi
Date: May 10,2025



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET

{¥In crores)
Notes Asaf March 3L As at March 31,
2025 2024
| ASSETS
i Fircnciol ossets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 28 421
(b} Bork bakance other than (a) above 5 - 10425
(c) Trade recewables -] - 048
(d) Loans 7 145.25 749.55
(e Investments g 45613 791514
iy Crher financiol assets 9 2,048.53 30.94
885272 8.809.57
2 Nen-financial assels
(@) Current fax ossets 12135 Nn0.55
1) knvestment Property L4 1737 17.73
{¢) Property, plant and equipment 1 039 04
(d) Other nen-financial assets 2 0.24 024
139.35 128.93
Total assets 8.992.07 8,938 50
I LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Financiol liabliitkes
(o} Trade Payables 13
(3 total outstanding dues of miero enterprses and small enterprises on o}
(1) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enferprises and smali enterprises 028 075
(b) Debt securities 14 1608 343848
() Borrowings (Other than debf secuntios 15 21500 8500
() Other financial habilities 16 2604 4815
3.287.51 357238
2 Non-financial babiiities
ta) Current tax liablites 383 21
{b) Provisions 7 Q.07 012
(¢} Deferrad tox ligbilies (net) 8 10437 -
t¢} Other non-fnanciol hablties 8 280 139
W.o7 370
3 Equity
() Equity share capitel 19 74159 174159
) Instruments entirely equty n nature 20 1,800.00 1800.00
{c} Other equity 205190 182083
559349 536242
Totd hebilities ard equity 899207 393850
See accompanying nates fo standatone fimancal statements
As per our report of even date attached
For B R Maheswarl & CoLLP For end on behadf of the Board of Directors NARLMANC &g&‘:%ﬂ‘:&l

Chartered Accountants
Firrn Registration Number: O0IC35N/NS00050

AKSHAY

Digitally signed by
AKSHAY MAHESHWAR!

MAH ESHWAR| Date: 2025.05.10

21:27:52 +05'30'

Akshay Maheshwarl

Partner

Membership No. 504704

Place Delh
Date May10.2025

PATHAMADA, Oigitally sugned by
PATHAMADA!
| BALACHANDRAN
BALACHAND: B30 e n 0
RAN BALAJI  zo2o0e w53
P.B. Balaiji
Diracior
(DIN - 02762983}

MOHIT
AGARWAL 55000
Mohit Agorwal
Chief Financal Officer

Digeaty ey
T HOARARL

Place pMumbal
Date: May 10, 2025
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SIVAKUMAR Dete: 20250510
192486 +05'30

N. V. SIVAKUMAR

Director

(DIN - 03534101

Slgutatiy signed
by NEERRJ

NEERAJ

KUMAR HUMAR DWEVEDH

DWIVEDI  Sisssosio
Neeraj Dwivedi
Company Secretary

Membership No - ACS20874



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(Z in crores)
Notes T the year anded For the year ended
March 3t 2025 Merch 31, 2024
| Revenue from operations
@) Interest ncome 22 8963 12508
(b) Rental mcome 454 454
{c) Net gain on fair value chenges 23 1056 1301
Totol Revenue from operations 10473 142,63
I Other income 24 306 2562
N Totalincorne (14 1) 107.7%¢ 168 25
IV Expenses.
(@) Fnance cost 25 26877 28538
(b} Impawment of financial instruments and other assets 26 (297) 152)
(¢} Depreciation expense 0.1 036 037
(d) Other expenses 27 s 370
Totdd expenses 27007 28793
V Profit  (Loss) before exceptional flems and tax (Il - IV} {162.28) (N13.68)
VI Exceptiond frerms
Provision For imparrment of Investments andleans ina subsidiary cormpany 2978 -
Marked-to-rnarket (gain)f loss on aecount of merger of Tata Motors Finance Limited to Tala
Capitel Liruted [Refer Note 401} (770.85) -
Vi Profit f {Loss) bafore tax { - VD) 47879 {119.68)
Vill Tex expense 28
{a) Current tax - -
by Deferred tax 104.37 -
Total tax expense 104.37 -
IX Profit / (Loss) for the year (Vil - VI 374.42 (11768}
X Total comprehensive income/ (oss) for the year 37442 (119.68)
%I Earnings per share of (Face value €10 each) 29
Basic (in ¥) 133 .50
Diuted (in %} 133 50
See accompanying notes o standalone financal statements
As per our report of even date attached "
I::ohr BR Mqtrswcrif& (?o \LP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors HARUMANC o
artered Accountants Drghealty sqned By VERKATA
3 PATHAMADA! pATHAMADAI HI VENKATA
Firm RBgiSfl’Of!Gﬂ Nurnber: OOI03SN/NSOCGS0 BALACHANDR ::.:f‘mnumv SIVAKUMAR ;‘:ﬁggg‘:zs.m
Digitally signed by ANBALAJl  [ale 20230570 1%25:21 +05°30°
AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWARI - R o T o
Date: 2025 05.10 -B. Balay V-
MAHESHWARI 21:78:30 +05'30" Director Dirgctor

Akshay Maheshwari
Partrer
Mearnbership Mo, 504704

Place Delh
Date May 10,2025

(DIN - 02752983

NOHIT  Zoran?

(DIN - 03534100

MEFRAJ  Digtaly signed
try NEERAS
KUMAR  KUMARDWREDI

AGARWAL B S DWIVED 5055 oo
Mohit Agarwal Meeraj Dwivedi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place’ Mumban
Date May 10, 2025

Membership No - ACS20874



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(¥ in crores)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTWITIES
Profit/ Goss) before fax 47879 19 &8)
Inferest incomne ontoans. deposts and investments (89 63) (12508)
Balence written back Q10 Qin
Finance costs 26877 28538
Depreciation expense 036 037
Gain on sale of investments {10.92) (1300
Allowances/ (reversds) for laan losses (net) {297 1.52)
Provisian for diminution in the value of mvestment and lean texceptiondl item} 12978 -
marked-to-Market gan on account of merger of Tata Motars Finance Lirmvted to Tata Copital
Liritad [Refer Note 4C(g)] {excepronal rem) (77085) N
(Profit}i Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 0.02) jofe )
Operating cash flow before werking capltal changes 321 26.37
Movernenits In working copital
Trade and other recewables 0.58 116
Trade and other payables 36 003
Cther financial assots (00} (0 44)
Other non-financial assets - 040
Other financial labiihes 3 0
Provision for expenses (C.02) 1003)
Other non-fincncial liaklities 14§ 102
482 28.45
finance costs paid (25771) (103.72)
Incorne toxes (paid) (net) {216) (34.36)
Net cash used in operating activities (26205) {109.63)
B.  CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTMITIES
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment = oal
Interest incorne recaved on foans, depasits and investmants 9450 124.10
Investment of channet fircnce - (5.59394)
Recovery of channel fnance 36395 608155
Inter corporate deposit placed (22165) (79000)
Inter corporate depasit repaid 40300 70300
(Purchase)! Redemption of mutual fund units (neh) {45.22) 109.06
Investment in equity shares of asubsiciary company Q.00 -
Deposits with mare than 3 rmonths matunty 100.00 E
Nat cash generated from Investing activities 694.57 61378
C.  CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES
Distnbutions made to halders of instruments entirely equity in noture (i43.35) 14338
Proceeds from borrowings {other than debt securities) 2540.00 74000
Repayrment of borrowings (ather than delot securities) (8B0COY (7G0.00)
Proceeds from issue of debt securities 490.50 152830
Repayment of debt securities (2.845617) (.957.00)
Net cash used In finoncing activities (438.92) 1532.06)
Net Increasef (decrease} in cash ond cash eguivalents (A +8 + <) 16.40) (2794
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year @21 3712
Cash and cash equvalents gt the end of the yaar 281 92
Net Increcisef (decrease) in cash and cosh equivaents (A +B + C) (6.40) (27 91

Note-1 Finance costs has been consdered as ansing from operating activities in vew of the nature of the Company's business

2 The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method as per the requrements of Ind AS 7,

As per our repart of even date atracned
For B R Maheswari & CoLLP For and on behif of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Drgitally ssgnec by

Firm Registration Nurrber, COI035N/NS00080 D

BALACHANDR S5
Digitaliy signed by ANBALA)I  Duwdososio
AKSHAY AKSHAY MAHESHWARI PE Bak T
Date: 2025.05.10 i
MAHESHWARI ks 2550, Director
(DIN - 02762983}
Akshay Maheshwar
Partner s
Memisership No. 504704 MOHIT E«‘é‘.ﬂ’m‘iﬁf
AGARWAL S5 5750
Mohit Agarwal
Chief Finarcial Officer
Flace. Delh
Date May 10, 2025 Place Mumbal

Date: May 10, 2025

“Statement of Cash Flows'
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N. V. SIVAKUMAR
Errector
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NEERAJ .pausitysigaeaty
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A Equity share capital

TMFHOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Nurnber (®incrores) Nurnber (¥ Incrores)
Shares cutstanding at the beginning of the year 741,593,442 174159 1741.593.442 174159
Shares issued during the year = = - 5
Sharas outstonding at the end of the year 1741593442 7459 1741593442 174159
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
As at March 31, 2025 Asat March 31, 2024
Number @ in crores) Nurrber (2 in crores)
Balance af the begnning of the year 18,000 1,800.00 18.00C 180000
Issued during the year - - - -
Bakance at the end of the year 18.000 1800.00 18.000 180000
C. Cther equity
(2 in crores)
Reserve and surpius
o Securities .
Specia reserve’ premi Capital reserve Retained eomings Tota
cocount Undistributable
indAsiop  Ditributctle

Balance as at April 1, 2024 257.83 194705 5091 5.53 (440.4%) 182083
prafit! (Loss) for the year B S - 374.42 37442
Distributions made to holders of mstruments - - - (143.35) 143.35)
entirely equity in nature
Transfer to Special Reserve 7489 7489 =
Balance os at March 3, 2025 3R’272 184705 5091 553 {284.3D 2,051.80

(¥ incrores)

Reserve and surpls
. . Securities
Specid reserve’ prerrum Capital raserve Retaned ecmings Total
account Undistributable ;
tindAS 10T Distributable

Balance as at April 1, 2023 25782 194705 509 553 {177 45} 208387
Profitf {Loss) for the year = - - {N9.68} (119.68}
Distributions made to holders of mstruments - - - {14336} {14336)
antirely equity In nature
Baotance as at March 31, 2024 25783 1947 05 5091 553 (440.49) 182083

e

*Transfer to special raserve: As per Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of Indict Act, 1934, the Company Is recquired fo create a reserve fund and fransfer therein a sum not less

than 20% of its net profit every yeor before any dividend is declared, No appropriation of any

<um from the reserve fund can be made by the Company except for the

purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Rank of Ind:a fram tme to fime and every such appropriation shel be reported o the Reserve Bark of India within twenty-
one days from the date of such witndrawal The company transfer said amount at the end of financial year

See aoccompanying notes to standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B R Mahaswari & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firrn Registration Number: 001035N/NS00050

PATHAMADAI txriaron
BALACHANDR piat o

For and on behdlf of the Board of Directors
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Akshay Maheshwari
Partner
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Date May 10, 2025
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Mohit Agarwal
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Date May 10, 2025
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N. V. SIVAKUMAR
Director
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Company Secretary
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TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1Company infermation

TMF Holdings Lirmited (the *Cornpany” hawng CIN - U65923MH2006PLCISZ503 15 registered as a Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Heldingy Cempany
("NBFC™) under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India (RBY). Act 1934 with effect from August 9. 2006 Pursuant fo application requesting for conversion of the
Company to a Core Invesirment Company. submitted te RBI on June 23, 2017, RBI issued o fresh Cerfificate of Regstredion of NBFC - Non-Dieposit taking - Systemnically
Important - Core Investment Cormpany (CIC) dated October 12, 2017, to the Company The Company 15 ¢ subsicrary of Tata Motors Limted With effect from june 17,
2017. ihe name of the Company had changed to TMF Holdings Lirnited from Tata Motars Finance L mited.

The Company is primarly a holding company. folding investments in its subsidiaries and other Group companies,
The standdone financial siatements ware approved by the Board of Directors and authonzed for issue on May 10. 2025

2 Basis of preparation of standalone financiol statements
21 Staternent of compliance

The standalone finaneiel statements of the Company have been prepared m accordance with indian Accounting Standards Und AS) prescribed under section 133 of the
Companies Act. 2013 {the "Act) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted n India, Any application guidence/
clarificatons! drrections issued by the Reserve Bank of India or other regulators are Implemented as and when they are tssuedf applcable

The preparation of fnancicd statements reguires the use of certain critical gecounting eshmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, labilities
revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent licbilties, Areas nvolving & higher degree of judgement or cormplexity, or areas where gssumpttons are
material to the Company are discussed i Note 30 - materiah accounhng udgements. estimates and assumplions.

The standdione financial staternents are presented in Ind:an Rupees [INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated “0” refers
to value rounded elow rounding off norms

2.2 Historical cost convention

The standalone fincneicl statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financ.al mstruments, which are measured at far value ot the end of
each reporting period os explained in the accounting polcies below

2 3 Prasentation of standalone financial statements

The standalone Francicl staternents of the Cormpany are presented as per Schedule ill (Diviston I of the Companies Act, 2013 applcable to NBFCs, as notfiea by the
Mirstry of Corporate Affairs (MCA] The Starement of Cash Flows has been presented using indirect method s per the requrements of ind AS 7 Staternent of Cash
Flows.

3 Matericl Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies apphed in the preparation of these standdlone finoncial stafements are sef cut below These policies have been consistently appled to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

(i) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the stondalone fnancial statements in canformuty with Ind AS requires maragement to make Judgments, estirmates and cssumpticns that affect the
apphcation of accounting policies and repor ted amounts of assets, labilites and disciosures of contingent liciilities ot the date of these standalone financicl statements
and reperted amounts of income and expenses for the years presented Actual results may differ from these estimates,

gstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date Revisions 1o accounting eshmates are recognised n the period in which the estimates
are revised and future period affected

In particulor. nformation about signficant areas of estimation uncertainty and criticol judgments in applying accounting pelices fhat have the most signficant effect on
the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements are included in following notes:

@) Note 3 - Recogrition of interest income/expenses usng Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
19) Mote 34} - Recegnition of deferred tax assets

&) Note 3v) - Useful lves of property. plant and equipment

) Note 3(vi) - Megsurerent and recegnition of prowisions and coniingencies

&) Note 30x)- Business moded assessment for classification anct measurement of financicl assets
£ Nofe 3Lx) - Imparment of financial assets based on the expected cred loss model

@) Note 3ux)- Effectve Interest Rore (EIR) methodology that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behaviordl life of financicl
instruments

hy Note 3ix} and 36 - Fair value measurement of financial instrurnents
i} Note 32 - Disclosure of contingent licbiites

{ii) Revenue recognifion
(A} Revenue from aperations
Interest Income

Inferest income s recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying ameount of financial assets other than credit-mpaired cssets. When o
financial csset becormes credit-impeired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amorhized cost of the financial
asset

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed

— The rate that exactly discounts estmated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finoncial assat to the gross carrymg amount of o financial asset

- By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows

- Including all feestservice charges andincentives pad ond received between parties 1o the contract that are an integral part of the effective nterest rate. fransaction
costs, and all ather prernums or discounts

n
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{iv)

TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ary subsaquent changes in the estimetion of the future cash flows is recognized i interest Income with the corresponding adustrment to the carrying amount of the
assets

lncome Taxes
Incoms fax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Lass
Current income taxes are determined based on respective taxable Income of the Company and tax rules applicable for respective tax jurisdictions.

Deferred tax assets and labilihes are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differances between the carrying values of assets and habilities and
their respechive tax bases, and urutlized business loss and unabserbed depreciation camy-farwards and fax credits Such deferred tax assets and liabilites are
computed separately Deferred fax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be avalable aganst which the deductble
temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused fax credits could be uhlized

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities ere measured based on the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the period when the asset is regized or the Labllity is settled
based on tox rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Current and deferred fax assets ond fabilities are offset when there s a legally enforceckle right to set off current tax assets aganst current tax kabilihes and when
they relate ¢ income taxes levied by the same toxation autherity and the Cernpany intends to setfle its current and deferred tax assats and habilities on a net bosis

Investrment Property

Proparty that is held for long-term rental vielg or for capital oppreciaton or both. and that is net occupied by the Company. is classified as vestment property
Investment property Is measured nficly of cost including related transactions cost Subsequent expenditure is capitalized fo the assets carrying amount only whenit is
prabable that future econornic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the entity and the cost of the ifem can be measured reliably. All other reparrs and
mantenance costs are expensed when incurred. Invesiment properties other then land are depreciated as per the sstimated useful life of aazets prescribed by the
Schedule Il fo the Cempartes Act 20131e 4Q years for office premises

(v) Property, Plont and equipment (PPE)

(vi)

Property. plant and equipment are stated af cost of acquisition less accurnuloted depreciation and impairment. if any Costincludes purchase price, non-refundable
toxes and levies and otirer directly attriputable costs of bringing the assefs fo it lecation and werking condifion for its mtended use

The cost of an item of PPE is recogmsed s an asset if. and only ff, it is probable that the economic benefits asseciated with the ttem will flow to tha Cempany in future
perods, and the cost of the 1rem can be measured relakly Expenditure incurred ofter the PPE have been put info operations, such as repairs and rmamntencnce
expenses, are charged to the Statemant of Profif and Loss dunng the period n which they are incurred

Anrtem of PPE 1s de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to anse from the continued use of the assets. Any gan or loss, arising
on the discosal of retirernent of enttem of PPE, is defermined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amaount of the asset, and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss

Depraciation 15 provided on the straight-line methad over the useful lives of the assets considering the nature. estimated usage. operahing conditions, past history of
replacement and anticipated technelogical changes less residual value

Schedule l to the Compenies Act 2013 ('Schedule’) prescribes the useful lives for various class of assets. For certain class of assets, based on technical evaluetion and
assessment, Managerment believes that the useful lives adepted by if reflects the periods over which these assets are expected fo be used Accordingly for those
assets, the useful lives estimated by manegement are different from those prescribed in the Schedule. Menagement's estimates of the useful lives for various class of
PPE are as given below

Type of Asset | Estimated useful life ]
Furniture and fixture 5 to 10 years B
Office Equiprnent 21010 years

Vehele on operating leose b years

The useful livas and method of depreciation s reviewed ot least at each year-end Changes i expected useful lives are treated os change in accounting estinmates

Deprecidtion on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis from the month of installation or acquisiion Depreciation on deductions/ disposals is provided on d pro-rata
basis up to the month preceding the month of deduction/disposal

However. leasehold mprovemants and PPE located in leasehold premises are depreciated on a straighi-ine method over shorter of therr respechive useful lves or the
tenure of the lease arrangement

Incdvidual assets costing less than ¥ 5,000/- cre expensed off at the tme of purchase
Provisions and Confingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized ¥, os a resull of a past event. the Company has a present legel or constructive obiigation that can be eshmated reliobly. and it 1s probable
that an cutflow of ecanormic benefrs will be required to settle the obligation

If the effect of the tme value of money 15 material, provisions are determined by chscounting the expected future cash flows to the net present value usng an
approprate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and. where appropriate, the risks specific to the lability

A present obligation that anses from past events, where it is either not prebable that an outflow of resources will be requred to setile or a reliokle estimate of the
amount cannot be made. is disclosed as a contingant lability. Contingent Labilities cre also disclosed when there Is a possicle obligation ansing from post events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the cecurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events, not wholly within the controf of the Compary.

Claims against the Company, where the possibllity of any outflow of resources in seiflement 15 remote. are not disclosed as contngent habifies Frovisions. contingent
liomilties and conhngent assers arereviewad ot each Balance Sheet date

Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits 1s probable. Contingent assets are nof recognized in the standalone financial statements.

{vil) Dividerd

Any dividend declared or paid by the Campany is besed on the profits aveddble for distribution as reperted in the standalone financial statements Indian faw
randates that dividend e declared out of distributable profits, after setting off un-provided losses and depreciation of previous years. In cose of inadeguacy or
absence of profits in a parficular year, a company may pay dividend out of accumulated profits of previous s transferred to Stetemant of Profit and Loss,
However, in the absence of accumulated profits a company may declare dividend out of free reserves. su to certain conditions ¢s prescribed under the

12



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014 Accordingly. n certain years the nef income reperted in these stondalone financicd statements may not
be Rully distributable. Further. declarafion of dividend from the profits of the financial year ending march 21, 2005, are aiso subject to guidelines of RBI in this regard

{vill) Investment in Subsidieries and Joint Ventures

(i}

)

Investments in Subsidiaries and Jont Yentures are measurad at cost as per Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial Staternents
Financial instruments

A financidl instrument is any coniract that gives rise fo d francial asset of cne enfity and a financial liability or equity instrument of anather entity Fnencial instruments
are recognized when the Company becornes & party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Finonciol Assels

Initicl recogrition and rmeasurement

all financicl assets are recogrized intiolly af fair value However. in the case of inancial assets nat recorded at far value through profit or loss, transaction cosfs that
are atirbutcble to the gcquisihon of the financial asset are added to the far velua The transaction costs directly attrbutable o the acquisition of financial assets af fair

value through profit er less are immediately recognised in profif or loss

purchases or sales of fmancial assets that reguire delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulaton or convention in the marketplace {regular way
trades} are recognised on the trade date 1e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assat !

Finencidl assets with embedded denvatives cre considered in therr entirety wher defermining whether their cash flows are solsly payment of princpal ond intersst.
Classfication and Subseguent mecsurement

For the purposes of initial recogrition, fnancial ossets are cassifed in the following categonas

(¢} at amertized cost, or

(b} af fair value through other comprehensive incems (FYTOCH. or

tcy  at fair value thraugh profit or loss (FYTPL)

The above classification depends on the Company's business maodet for managing the fmancial assets and the contractugl ferms of the cash flow

(1) Debt instruments

Initial classification of debt nstruments depends on the Company's business medel for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset There are
three measurement categenes into which the Cornpeny classifies its debt instruments

{a) At amortised cost:
A debt Instrument is measured at amorhised cost, if both the following condifiens are sahsfied/ fulfilled
- The asset is held within a business model whese objective 5 to hold assets for collecting contractual cesh flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give nse on specifed dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and nferest (SPPI) en the principal amount
outstanding

After intial measurement, such fincncial assets are subsequently measured at amorfised cost UsNg ihe offective inferest rate (EIRY methad Amortsed cost is
ccleulated by taking info accourt any discount or premium on aequisition and fees or costs that are an ntegral part of the ER. The EIR amortisatien is Included in

nterest Income In fhe statement of profit or loss The losses ansing fromimpairment are recognised in the stafement of profit or loss This category generally apples
o finance receivablas and investments,

(b At FVTOCL
A debt Instrument is classified at FVTQC, if both of the following cniteria are met
- The objective of the business model is achieved bath by collecting contractudi cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- Confractudh terms of the csset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest (SPPI) on tha principal amount
outstanding

Debst instruments included withir the FYTOCI caiegory are measured initiclly as well as at each reporting date at faur value Fair value movemnents are recognised In
the OCI Howevar, the Company recognises inferess Income. mpcirment losses and reversals in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognifion of tho asset.

cumilative gam or loss previousty recognised m OCl s reciassified from the equity 1o the Staternent of Profit and Less Inferest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt
nstrument is reported as interest income Using the EIR method.

(¢) At FVTPL:

FVTPL 15 a residudl categery for debt instfruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the cnferia for categorisation as af amortized cost or as FVTOCL is
classified as at FVTPL

in additicn. the Cormpany may elect to designate a debt instrumnent, which otherwise mests amorfised cost or EVTOC critenia, as ot FVTPL However such elechons
allowed only if doing so reduces or elminates a measurernent or recognition incensistency (referred to as ‘accounting misrmateh’)

Debt mstruments included wathin the FYTPL categery ore measured at far value with all changes recogrized in the stafement of profit and loss

Darivatives embedded in a host contract fat is an asset within the scope cf ind AS 109 are not separgted Financial assets with embedded dervatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of prncpal and inferest

(I Equity Instruments/finvestrments
Investments in equity nstruments are measured at far value Equity nstruments. which are held for trading, are clossfied as af FYTPL For aquity instrurments, other
than held for trading. the Cornpany has rrevocable opticn to present in OCI subsequent changes in the far velue. The Company makes such election on an

nstrument-by-instrument besis. The classification is rmade on initial recognition and is irrevecable

Where the Compeny classifies equity instruments as af FYTOC, then all fair volue changes on the instrument. excluding dividends, are recognized In the QCL There is
no recycling of the amaunts from OCl to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of nvestment

Equity mstruments included wishin the FYTPL categery are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss
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(I} irmpairment of financiol assets

"The Company apples the Expected Cradit Loss (€LY model in accordance with Ind AS 109 for recognising imparrment loss on finanaid ossets except for

- equity instrurnents wivch are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 10%. and

- other debt financial assets held at fair value through profit orloss (FVTPLY

The ECL alowance 1s based on the credit losses expected to anse from all possible default events over the axpected life of the financial assets (Iifetime ECL). unless
there had been no significant increcse in credr nsk of @ defaul oceurring since orig nation or initial recognition. in which case, the mpairment aflowance is based on the

12-rmonth ECL The 12-menth ECL 1s aportion of the lifetime ECL which results from defoult events that cre possible vathin 12 months ofter the reporhing date

£CL (both lifetme and 12 months) are caleulted on a collective bass considering The homegeneous nature of the underlying portfolio of financial assets For stage 1
and stage 2 assets. The company makes provision at hgher of requirement as per ECL rodel and as per RBI norms

The imparment methodalogy applies depends on whether there has bean signficant increase in credit risk When determining whether credit risk of a financicl asset
has increcsed significantly since inttial recogrition and when estimating expected credtt losses, the Company considers recsonable and supportable mformation that is

relavant and available without undue cost or offort This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience and
forward-looking informaton

The expected credit loss is a product of exposare af defoult (EAD). probebility of default (PD) and loss given defaut (LGDN The Company has devised an internal
madel to evaluate the PD end LGD based on the parameters set ouf n Ind AS 109, Accordingly. fhe financial assets have been segmented nio three stages bused an

the risk profiles The three stages reflect the generd patiern of credit deterioration of o financal assets The Company categorises financial assets at the reporting
date nto stages based on the days past due (DPDY) status as under

- Stage | Low credit risk, e O to 30doys past due

- Stage 2 Sigrificant ncrease n credit risk, i e, 31 to 90 days past due

- Stage 3 Credt Impaired assets. Le more than 50 days past due or cases where the Company suspects fraud and legal proceedings are mitiated.
Defirition of defautt

The Company considers a financiol asset fo be in rdefadlt’ and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations when the borrewer becormnes 90 days past due
on its contractual paymerds

LGD is an estimate of the less ansing in the case where a default oceurs at a given time. It 1s based on the difference behween the contrachuc cash flows due and these
that the Company would expect toreceive, Including from the realisation of any collateral 1t is usually expressed as a percentege of the EAD

PD 1s defined s the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their coligations in the future For assets which are i Stage 1 @ 12-menth PD 15 required For
Stage 2 assets alfetme PR s requred while Stage 3 assets cre considered gs default PD estimation process s carned out pased on historical internal data avalable
with the Company

EAD represents gross carrying amaount ot the reporting date in cose of Stage | and Stage 2. In case of Stage 3loans EAD represents gross carrying amount at the tirne
when the defoult occurred for Ist ime

Forward locking information

while estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macre-econormic developments occurring in the ecenamy and market it operates in. On a periodic
basis. the Company analyses if there is any relafionship between key econormic trends like GDP. Brent rates. unemployment rates, benchmark rofes set by the Reserve
Bank of Incka. inflation etc. with the estimate of PD. detarmned by the Company based on its Internal data. White the internal estimates of PD. rotes by the Company
may not be clways reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any. are embedded in the methodology to reflect such macre-econormic trends reasonably
Basad on the consideration of externdl actucl and forecast information, the Cornpany forms a ‘'bose case’ view of the future direction of relevant econormic varibles
This process involves developing two or more additional econorric scenanos and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents @
rmost ikely outcome while the other scenarios represenf mere optmistic and more pessimistic outcomes

EGL on Debt instrurments measured at amortised cost

The ECLs for debt instruments measured af amortised cost reduce the gross carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

ECL on Debt instrurnents measured at fair velue through OCH

The ECLs fer debt instruraents measured al FVOCI do not reduce the gross camying anount of these finanaial assets in the balance sheet. which remamns af faur value
Instead. an amount equal to the allowance that would orise if the ossets were measured ot amorhsed cost 1s recegnised in OCH as an accumulated impairrnent
amount. with a correspending charge to profit or loss The accumulated loss recognised in OCH s recycled to the profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets
Write-off

Thie gross carrying amount of a financicl cssets is written- off {either partialiy or fully) to the extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recevening the asset in s
entirety or a portion thereof. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcerment activities under the Compary's recovery procedures,
taking into account legdl advice where appropriate Any subsequent recover:es againss such finoncicl assets are credited fo the statement of profit and loss

(iV) Derecognition of financkal assets

The Company de-recognises a fnonciel asset when the contractual rghts to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financiol asset and
subsiantially all the nsks and rewords of awnership of the osset to another party If the Cornpany netther transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership and confinues to contrel the transferred asset, the Company recognises ts retained interest in the asset and an associated Lakdity for amounts it may have
to pay. if the Company retains substanticlly all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company confinues 1o recognise the financial

asset and dlso recognises an assaciated liability o collaterdlized borrowing for the proceeds received

On de-recognition of a financial asset. the difference between the asset's carrying armount and the sum of the censderation received and receivable and fhe
cumulative gainor loss that had been recogmsed in OC, and accumulated inequity 1 recognised in the Statement of Profif and Loss

A Kbl it ts
Classification as debf or equity
Debt and equity instruments, issued by the Cornpany, are clossified as either financial liabiliies or as equity. In accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitians of a financigl ability and an equity instrumsnt.
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D E il fichilit

Inifial recogrition and measurerment

Al financicl liabilites are recegrised mninally of for value However, in the case of financial liabities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss. transachon costs
that are drecily artributable to the issue of financid Labilities ere deducted from the fair volue of financidl liaiolifies. The fransaztion costs directly atnbutable fo the

1ssue of financial linines at fair value through profit or loss are immedictely recognised in the starement of profit or loss

The Company's fnoncial ligbilies rmojorly comprise of trade and other payables, loans and borrowings. ncluding bark overdrafis and cash creat facilty and

derivative financical instruments

Subsequent measurement

Al financied ligbilites are subsequently measured at amerhised cast using the effective mterest rate (EIR) rmethod or at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL)

(a At FVTPL:

Financial tabdities at FVTPL include financial habilities held for trading and financial kabilities designated upon mital recognition as af FYTPL Financial kabiihes ore
classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term This category also ncludes derivative finanadl instrurments entered

into by the Company. that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments in hedge relahonships as defined by ind AS 109 Separated embadded derivatives
are olso classified as held far trading, urless they are designated as effechve hedging mnstruments

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in +ha Staternent of Profit and Loss

F.nancial liabilities, designated upar infial recognition af EVTPL, are designated as such af the initic! date of recognition. and only if the criferia in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied.

(b) At amortised cost:

After inhial recagnihon mterest-bearing loans and borrowngs are subseauently measured at arnortised cost using the Effectve Interest Rate (EIR} method Amortised
cost 15 calculated by toking infa account any discount or prefum on acquisition and fees or costs that ore an integral part of the ER The EIR amorhsation s included In
Interest expenses in the stafernent of profit erloss

Derecagnition of financial iabilities:

The Company de-Tecognses finarcial liakilities when and only when, the Company's abligations ore discharged cancelled or have expred. The differance between
the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognises and the cansideration peid and payable 15 recognised in Stettement of profit and Loss

Madification/Renegotiahon that donol result n derecogniion

Changes fo the carryng amount of a financial lability as a result of renegotiation of modifcation of terms that do not result n derecognimon of the financiol labiity, is
recognised in the staternent of prafit and less Any subseguent changes in the esfimation of the future cash flows of financial tability is recognised under finonce costn
the staterment of profit or loss with the corresponding odjustment to the carrying arnourt of the financial licbility

(1) Equity Instrument

AR equity instrument 1 any confract that evidences residuat nterests in the assets of the Company after deduching all of its kabilties

Incrermental costs ncurred which are directly attnbutable fo the issue of new shares ara shown in equity as deducton. net of rax. from the proceeds

{II) Instrurnenis enfirely equity in nature

The Company recognises hybrid perpetual non convertible debentures os equity. If terms of the instrurnent with regards to period:c COUpON pGYMEN!s 1 such that,
coupon payments are at the discretion of the Company and the instrument is of non redeemnable In nature. thus such terms of the instruments evidencas residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deduching ali of its labmes

(V) Cornpound financial Instrument

The components of cormpound tnancial instruments issued by the Company dre classfied separately as financicl liabilities end equity n accordance with the
substerce of the contractuad arrangements and defirntions of ¢ financial liability and an equity instrument A conversion ophien that wil be seftled by exchange of fixed

armount of cash or another financid asset for a fed numiser of the Company's own eguity instruments is an equity instrument

At the date of issue. the fair value of the hiability component is estimated using the prevailing market inferest rafe for similar non canvertiole nstruments This amount is
recognised as @ liabiity on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest rate method until extinguished upon canversion or at the instrurnant's maturity date

The conversion option classified o5 equity is determined by deductmg the amount of fiability companant frorm the far value of the compound financial instrurnents as a
whole, This 1s recognised and included in equity. nef of 1ax effects. ond 15 not subseguently remeasured. In addition, the conversien option classified as equity will remain
n aguity until the conversion opticn 5 exercisad, inwhich case. the balance recogrised in equity wil be transferred to other component of equity When the conversion
option remains unexercised af the maturity date. the balence recognised in equity wil be transferred 10 refaned earnngs. No gan or loss is recognised in profit or loss
UpON CONYErsion or expiration of the conversien ophon

Transachion costs that relate fo the Issue of the converiible nstrument are allocated to the liakility and equity companents in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity cornponent are recogrised directly in equiy Transaction costs relating to the ligk:ity component are included In the
carrying amount of the liabilty component and are amortised over the fife of the corwertibls instrument using effective interest rate methed

Fair value measurement

wee Sheet date

The Cornpany measures financia instruments, such as nvestments ana derivatives at far vaiues of each

The far value of a financrd instrurnent an nifial recognition 1S normally the transaction price (far value of the consideration given or received). Subsequent to inificl
recognition, the Company determires the far value of francial nstruments that are quoted in octive markefs using the quoted loid prees (financicl ossets held! or
quoted ask prices (financid labfies held) and using vaiuation techniques for other instrurnents Valuatien techniques nclude discounted cash flow method and other
valuation maodels

Recent accounting proncuncenments

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs{"MCA") notfies rew standards or amendrments 10 the existing standards under Cormpanies (Indion Accounting Standards) Rules o5
sssued from fime to trme. Durng the year ended March 3. 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracis and amendments toind As 116 — Leases. relotmg o
sale and lease back fransactions. applicable from April1. 2024, The Company has assessed that there will be no significant impact on its fnancial statements
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

(Z Incrores}
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Balance with banks 2.81 g2l
Total 2.8l 9.2
5 Other bank balances
(¥ incrores)
As at March 3, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Deposits with bonks = 104.25
Total - 10425
& Trade receivables
{¥ in crores)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Receivables considered good - Unsecured N 048
Less Imparment loss allowance = -
Total - 548

No trade receivatles are due from directors or other cfficers of the compan
including lirited lob ity partnership (LLP) or private campanies respectively

the kalance cutstanding on March 31, 2025 1s nil

y sither severally or jmtly with any other person Nor any trade receivable are due from firms
'n which any directer is a partner, a director or member, No ageing of frade recevadle as

Trade Recsivables ageing scheduie
(2 in crores}
As at March 31, 2024
Mot clue Unblled  LesSThane  OMeMSTl 1oveas  2-3Yeors Morthen 3 tota
W) Undisputed Trade receivables —
consmE.I)ered good : : 048 - . B B 048
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase - - B - - - - -
in credit risk
(i) Unclisputed Trads Receivables - N _ _ _ . _ B R
credit wnpaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — _ _ _ - B . _ _
considered good
() Disputed Trade Recevables —
which have significant Increcse - - - - - - - B
incredit risk
(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables — _ _ _ . _ _ _ R
credt imparred
Total - - 048 - - - - 048
7 Loans
incrores)
As af March 31, As at March3l,
2025 2024
(A)  Atomertised cost
Credit substitutes = 36556
Infer corporate depas:s (repaydble on demand) 205.65 387.C0
Totd (A) - Gross 20565 752.56
Less Impairment loss alowance (60.40) {300
Totd (A) - Net 145.25 74955
(8  Unsecured 20565 75256
Total (8) - Gross 20565 75256
Less Impairment foss alowance (60.40) (301
Totdl (B) - Net 145.25 74%9.55
(C)Loansin Inclia
(@) Public Sector - -
(b}  Others 205.65 75256
Total {C) - Gross 20565 75256
Less: Imparment loss clowance {6040} (3010
Tetal (C) - Net 14528 74955

) The Campany has ot given loans or advances fo promoters, directors and KMPs (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), aither saverally or jontly with any other
nersan fhat are repayable on demand or without spec.fying any terms or period of repayrment.
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(i) The Company have given toans to related parties. that are repayable on demand or without specify any ferms of repayment s follows -

(Zincrorest

Particulors For the year ended March 3, 2025 For the year ended March 31,2024
oot of loon or advance in% fo the totdl Loons and Amount of loan or odvance in% to  the totgl Loans ond
the nature of loan outstanding  Advances in the  noture of the nature of loon outstondng  Advances in the nature of loans

loans
Related parfies 20565 00.00% 38700 5142%
& Investments
(% in crares)
Particulars As af March 31, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024
At feir vake At fair value
through Amnortised Others Totd through Amortised Others Tord
profit o loss cost {art cost} profit or loss cost (at cost}
Mutual Funds 5513 - 4 5613 r - N -
Debt securities - 60000 - 400,00 B 60000 = 400.00
Equity instruments
-Subsidares N = £9.38 6938 = & 7.31514 7.315 14
Total (A) - Gross 5613 60000 5938 7255 - 460000 731514 7.91514
Investmentsin India 5613 60000 69.38 725.51 3 40000 731514 7291514
Investments outside India - - - - - - - -
Totd (B) 5613 600.00 £9.38 72551 - 600.00 7.315.14 7.915 14
Less
Allowance for impairment loss (C) - ) (©9.38) (69.39) } } } B
Total (©) = (A+C) 5613 60000 - 65613 - 60C 00 731514 791514
Annexure | As af March 3, 2025 As ot March 31, 2024
Quantity (¥ in crores} Quantity {®in crores)
@) Investments measured af foir vaue through profit and loss
Mutud fund = 5613 - -
Totd = 5613 - =
{b) Investments measured ot Amortised Cost
() Debt Securities (quoted)
Fully paid unsecured subordinated non-convertible debentures
Tata Motors Finance Limited - [Coupan rate = 995%] 2.000 20000 2,000 20000
Subtotal 2,000 20000 2,000 20000
(i) Debt Securities (unguoted)
Fully paid unsecwed subordinated non-convartible debentures
Tata Metors Finance Limited [Coupon rate - 9%4] 2,000 20000 2000 20000
Tata Motors Finance Limited iCouronrate - 10% 1 1000 100.00 1000 10000
Tata Motors Finance Limited [Coupon rate - 10.25%] 1,000 100.00 1,000 00.00
Subtotal 4,300 40000 4,000 40000
(it Fully paid unsecured optionally convertivle zero coupon debantures
Loginomc Tach Sclutions Private Limited {"TruckEcsy”) 835,000 G 835000 -
Subtotal 835,000 & 835,000 -
Total (i+# +ii) 60000 00 00
(c) Investments measured at Cost
Equity Instruments
() Subsidiaries
TME Business Services Limited [Face Value ¥ 380/-) (Refer note below) 97.965.962 ut 96,143,953 5937
Tata Motors Finance Limited [Face Value E100/-1 {Refer note below) E - 496.539.176 724576
Subtotd = 7.315.14
(i) Joint Venture
Loginarmic Tech Solutions Private Limited (" TruckEasy”) [Face Value F10/-1 31200 31200
Subtotal 31200 - 31.200 -
Total (i +ii) . 7.315.14

* During the year ended March 31 7025, the Cornpany has evaluated ifs investments 1 equity instrument of TMF Business Services Lirnited [formerly known as Tata
Mators Fnanee Lintedi("TMFBSL) for indicaters of impairment, and accordingly considered allowance for imparment foss of ¥ 6938 crores
Nete

! The Company has purchased 18,22.016 shares of TMFBSL at € 0.05 per share during the yedr ended March 3, 2025
2 The National Company Law Tribungl ‘NCLT" has sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement of amalgamation of Tata Motors Finance Limted [formerly known as
Tata Motors Einance Soluhots Limited] "TMFL" into Tato Capital Limited “TCL"on May 01, 2025 The scherne is effective from May 8, 2025, vath appointed date
beng Apri 1. 2024 Pursuant fo the scherne, TMFL has ceased fo be a wholly subsidary of the Compary. gs at Aprl 1, 2024 and the Company will receive equity
shares in the ratic of 37100, 1e 18.38.67.495 equity shares having feice value of ¥ 100 each of TCL inliau of 49,69.39.176 equity sharss having face value of ¥ 100/- of
THMFL
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9 Other financial ossets

(% in crores)
As ot March 3], As at March 31,
2025 2024
{a) Deposils 034 037
(b)  inferest accrued oninvestments 3157 3057
&) Others- Invesiment in Tate Capital Limited (Refer note below) 8.016.62 -
Total 8.048.53 3054

Note - The NCLT has sanctioned the Scheme of Arrangement of amalgamation of TMFL into TCL on May 01 2025 Pursuant to the scheme. the Company will receve
equity shares in the ratio of 37100, 2 183867495 equity snares having face value of €100 each of TCL In licu of 49.49.39.176 equity sndres having face valua of 2 1004- of
TMFL. which the Company has accounted at fair value through profit and loss recording an increase n vaue by ¥ 77085 crores basis the fair valuation done as on
reporting date,

G Investrment Property

@ in crores)
Brildings Totd

Cost as at April 1, 2024 2246 2246
Additions - -
Cost os at March 31, 2025 2245 2246
Accumulated depreciation as at Apdl 1, 2024 (473) 473
Depreciaton for the year {038 0.35)
Aceumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 (509 509
Net carrying amount as af March 3), 2025 17.37 1737
Cost as at Apiil 1, 2023 2248 2244
Additions - B
Cost as at March 31, 2024 2246 2246
Accumulated depreciation as at Apri 1, 2023 (4.37) {4.37)
Depreciation for the year (038 (0.36)
Accumulated depraciation as at March 31, 2024 {4.73) 473
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 1773 17.73

(@} Income and expenditure of investment property
{Fincrores)

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
o Rental income derived from investment property 4.54 454
Direct operating expenses tincluding repairs and maintenance) arsing from investment
) ) 0.59 Q86
property thot generated rertel income
(i) Depreaation 036 036

(b} The far vaiue of the nvestment property amounted to 2 4325 crores (As at March 31, 2024 7 4325 crores) The fair valus measurement for investrment property has
been categorised as Leval 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation tecnnique used

{e) Thers isno restrichon on the reclisabity of investment property or the remittonce of income and proceeds of dispascl.

(e There was no contractual obligatiens to purchase, construct or develop investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements of Investment property at
March 3, 2025 and at March 31, 2024

{8 Title deed of mmovable properties are held in the name of the Company Hence others disclosure requrements are rot applicable.

11 Property. plant and equipment

(Zin crores)
Fumniture, fixtures and office .
aqui ; Vehicles Totd

Cost as ot April |, 2024 82 - 82
DisposalfAdustments 0.46) N (0.46)
Cost as af March 31, 2025 775 - 775
Accumuloted depreciation es of April 1, 2024 (7.80) - (7.80)
Cepraciation for the year Q - -
Disposal/Adjustments 044 N 0.44
Accurmulated depreciation as at Mareh 31,2025 (7.36) - 7.38)
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 3% - 039
Cost as at April 1, 2023 838 052 890
Disposal/Adjustments Q17 (.52 069
Cost as at March 31, 2024 8.2 = 221
Accumulated depreciation as at April1, 2023 793 10.50 (8.43)
Depreciation for the year 0.02) - {002}
DisposalfAdustments 015 0350 065
Accurnukated depreciation as at March 31,2024 {7.80) - (7 80)
Net canying amount as at March 31, 2024 041 - 0.4)
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12 Other nen-finoncial assets

(% in crores}
Asat Morch 3L, Asat March 3],
2025 2024
{a) Deposits with statutory quthorities 004 Q04
(b} Prepaid exgenses oo 009
{¢) Taxes recoverable and dues from government Ol4 Q06
(d) Tuxes pad under protest 001 0ol
(e} Others 004 004
Total Q24 024
13 Payables
(¥ in crores)
As at March 3, As at March 31,
2025 2024
Trele Payables
w Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises ond srmall enferpnses cn 0
iy Totd outstanding dues of credhitors other than ricro enterprises and small enterprises 0.28 075
Total 039 075

Note: According to the infermation avalable with the management. on the besis of mfimation received fromits suppliers regarding therr status under the Micro, Small
and Medum Enterprises Development Act, 2006, the Company has ameounts due te micro and small enterprises under the said Act 1s as follows:

& incrores)
As at March 3], As at March 3],
2025 2024

@) Principal amount net due ca o}

b) Principal amount due - -

¢} Interest dus onabove

d) Amount of Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Srmall and Medium Entarprises - _

Developrment Act, 2004

e) Amount of nterest due and payable for the period of delay = 2

Fy Amount of interest accrued and remncining unpaid as at yeor end - -

g Amount of further remairing due and payable In the succeeding year n “

Total - -
Trade Payables aging schedule

(Tincrores)
As ot March 31, 2025
Cuitstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not dus Unbifled Le&; than 1 12 Years 2.3Yeqs Morethan3 Total
aar Years
1) MSME o = ] L - - ofn
(1} Others 014 - 014 - - - 1))
(1) Disputed duss - MSME - - - - - - -
(v} Disputed dues - Others - - - = = = E
Totad 0325 = Q14 = N - 0.3%
Note All the amount of MSME vendors are paid withn due dates and there is no interest accrued during the current year
(Fin crores)

As at March 31, 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not dhae Unbilled Lss\:s them 1 12 Yoars 2-3 Years Mora than 3 Totd
Bar Yours
() MSME = 4] - - - - -
() Gthers - Q40 035 B - - 073
(7} Disputed duas — MSME - - - - - 2 =
{nv) Disputad dues - Others - - - - - - 8
Teotal N 040 035 = - - 075
Note All the amount of MSME vendars are paid withn due dates ond there is mo interest accrued during the previous year
14 Debt securitios
(%in crores)
As af March 31, As at March 3,
2025 2024
Unsecured
(a1} Privately placed non-convernble debentures 11608 254219
) Cornmercial Paper (net of unamortised borrowing cost of Enil and # 2871 crores at March 31, 2025 and _ 996,29
March 31. 2024, respechvely)
Totcd (A) 11608 3,43848
Debt securities in India Mé&08 3.43848
(i)Debt securities outside India - -
Totel (B) 111608 343848
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Details of non-convertible debentures {Unsecured)

From Balance shest Dara

Issued on private plocement basis
Mdaturing within 1 Year

Moturing between | year to 3 Yaars
Maturing between 3 Years to § Yeors
Tetal Facs Vaue

-ess: Unamartised borrowang cost
Total Amertised cost

Details of Cemmercial papers (Unsecured)

From Bakance sheet Date
Maturing within | Year

Total Face Vakue

Less: Unamarhsed borrowing cost
Totd Amortised cost

15 Borrowings - Other than debt securities

Inter corporate deposits from related parties (unsecured)

Total (A)

) Borrowings in ndia
{1} Borrowings outade Incha
Tetal (B

Interest Rate Range

Interest Rata Range

Noter The berrowings have not been guaranteed by directars or others Alsa the Company has not defaulted in repoyment of principal and interest

Datails of Inter corperate deposits (ICDs)

From Balance sheet Date
Maturing within | Year

Tetol Face Valie

Less Unamorhsed borrowing cost
Total Amortised cost

16 Other financials liabilities

(@} Interast accrued on barrowings
(b} Others
Total

17 Provisions

Provision for expenses

Totd

18 Other non-financial licbilities

Statutory dues
Total

Interest Rate Range

(& in crores)
As at March 3, 2025 As at Merch 31, 2024
Armount Interest Rate Rangs Amount
7.69% 389.22 7024 1t0942% 1527 21
8.53% 83133 769% to 853% 1220565
122065 2,747 86
104.57 20567
1N6.08 254219
(Zin crores)
As gt March 31, 2025 As af March 31, 2024
Arnount Interest Rate Range Amount
. 848% to 850% 92500
- 92500
= 2871
- 89629
(¥ in croras)
Asat March 3], Asat March 31,
2025 2024
214500 8500
24500 8500
214500 8500
214500 85.00
(Tin crores)
As gt March 31, 2025 As af March 31, 2024
Arnount Interest Rate Range Amount
825% 10 892% 214500 892% 8500
214500 8500
2,145.00 8500
¥ in crores)
As at March 3), As at March 3,
2025 2024
=) 221
2604 2604
2604 4815
{#in crores)
As at March 3, As gt Mareh 3],
2025 2024
Q.07 Q12
Q.07 Q12
(¥ in crores)
As at March 31, Asat March 3,
2025 2024
280 139
280 1.39
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19 Share Capital

Rincrores)
As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2028 2024

Authorised
3,00.00.00,000 Ordinary equity shares of F10 each 3.00000 250000
(as at March 3, 2024 2.50.00,00,000 Crdinary shares of 7i0 each)
7.50.00.000 Compuisory convertible preference shares of 100 each 75000 750,00
{os at March 31, 2024: 7.50,00.00C Ordinary shares of 100 each)
lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up
174.15,93.442 Ordinary equity shares of 80 each 174159 174159
{as ot March 31, 2024 1741593442 Crdinary shares of 10 each)

Total 1,741.59 1,741.59

a} Reconcillation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As af March 31, 2025

As ot March 31, 2024

No, of shares &in crores} No. of shares (¥in crores)
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1741593442 17415¢ 1741593442 174159
Equity shares issued during the yeor - - - -
Shares outstending at the end of the year 1.741.593.442 174159 1741593442 1.741.59

b) Details of equity shares held by holding cormpany and its subsidiaries;
As at March 31 2025

As ot March 31, 2024

% of issued share % of issued share
No. of shares capitd No. of shares capiral

Ecuiity shares with voting rights

Tata Motors Limited 1741593442 100% 1.741593442 1004

¢) Details of equity shares held by Promoters:
As af March 3), 2025 As af March 31, 2024
e AU No. of Sharss %of fofdshares Chmg:;wing he e of Shares %of total sharas - Chawg:drd(ﬂng e

Tata Motors Limited 1.741,593.442 100% il 1,741,593,442 100% il

d) Terms / rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has single class of equity sharos Accordingly. oll equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share m the Company's residual assets
The equity shares are enfitled to receive dividend s declared from time to fime subject to payment of divigend fo preferance shareholders The voting rights of
an equity shareholder on a poli are in proportion to its share of the pad-up equity capital of the Cempany. On winding up of the Company. the holdsrs of ecurty
shares will be entitled to recewve ine residual assats of the Company. remaning after distribution of dll preferenticl amounts in proportion to the number of the

equity shares held

e} Information regarding issue of shares In the last five years
11} The Cormpany has not issued any shares without payment being recerved i cash
(i) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
{iii} The Company has not undertaren any buy-back of shores

f) Dividends not recognized at the end of the year
The company has not declared divdends during the finaneal year ended March 31 2025 and march 31, 2024
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20 Instrumsnts entiraly equityin nature

Asat March 31, As gt March 31,
2028 2024
Number (Zin crores) Nurnbber (€in crores)
Balance as at beginn.ng of the year 18,000 180000 18.000 180000
tssue during the year 3 - - B
Balance as af end of the year 18,000 1800.00 18.000 180000

The Company has issued 18.000 subardinated. listed, unsecured, rated perpetual securites of face velue of 2 10 crares egch aggregating to 31,800 00 crores The coupon

aon these securthes ranges between 7 1962% pa.to8755i%pa

Thesa securities are parpetual In nature with no rmaturity or redemption and are callable only ot the ophion of the Company There i a step-up provision of 100 bps over
the respective coupon rate if the securties are riot called by the issuer at the end of 10 years from the date of allotment The payment of any Coupon may be cancelied

or suspended at the discration of the Board of Directors

The Coupon on thesa Instruments shall not be cumulative excent where the Company shall not be liable to pay Coupoen and may defer the payment of Coupar, if
1 s adusted net worth fo aggregate nisk weighted assers ratio ("ANW Ralie’} 5 below the minmum regulatory requirement prescrived by RBI under the CIC Directrons. or
i the impact of such payment results in tha Company's ANW Ratio fallng below or remaining below the minimum regulatory requrernent prascrived by RB! under the CIC

Directions

As these securities are perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redsmption obligation, these are classfied gs equity

Tata Motors Limited (.. Parent Comoeny) has wntten put Sption to purchase these nstruments from the investors on respective ophion exercise dates as specified

below

| Amount (F in crores)

Stertus of Options Exercised by Tata Mojors Limited |

tions Exercisable Date
' August, 2004

195.00 Exercised
18" August, 2024 30500 Exercised
Q4 November, 2025 1C000 Not due
27" November, 2025 100.00 Not due
|_2™ Decernber, 2025 150.00 Not dug
30" December, 2025 150.00 Not due
15" Seprember, 2026 10000 Not due
28" September, 2026 10000 Not dug ]
30" September, 2026 15000 Not due
30" June, 2027 |_20000 Not due
30 Septemiber, 2027 250.00 Not due

21 Notes to reserves

(i) Specid reserve

As per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of Indics Act, 1934, every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund
than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as diselosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before any dividend is declared Mo appropriation of any

and transfer therein o sum not less

sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except for the purpese as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of Ind:a frem
hme ta time and every such dppropriation shall be reperted to the Reserve Bank of Indra within twenty~one days from the dare of such withdrawal The

Company transfer said amount at the end of the financial year
(ii) Securities premiurm account

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shoresis recognised in Secunities Prermium Account Also, ol ‘elgible’ ssue expenses in respect of new

equity infusion end CCPS infusion 1s recognised in Securities Premiurm Account.

(iii) Capital reserve

The Capital Reserve represents the compensetng revarsal adjustment relafing to amortisation of discount on the Zero-Coupon Deberturas which were

charged aganst the Securities Premium Raserve earlier which is not dilowed as rer the Componies Act, 2013 This separdte rate reserve head is created based

on the Frequently Asked Guestions (FAG) 1ssued by the Ind AS Transition Faclitation Group

(v} Retalned samings
Reto'ned eornings are the profits that the Company has earned fill date

22 Interest Income

{&incrores)

Fer the year ended For the year endedl
March 3], 2025 March 31, 2024
©n financicl assets rmeasured ot amortised cost
{a} Interest onloans 190 3039
(b) Intarest income from investments 5813 5817
(<) Interest on deposits with banks 509 a3¢
() Other interest mcome 2451 2813
Tatal 8963 125.08
23 Net gain on fair value changes
(¥incrores)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nat gain on Foir Value changes:
(a) Realised 1045 1301
2] Unreghsed [92]] -
Total 10.56 1301
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24 Other Income

(a) Support services meome
(b) Balances wnitten back
() Net gan on derecognihon of property, plant and equipment
td) Interest on Income o refund
Total

25 Finance Costs

{a) Interest on lborrowings

(b} Interest on debt securities

tc) Other finance charges
Total

24 Impairment on financial instrurnenits and other assets

Imparment on financial cssets
Loans (at amortised cost)
- Alowance for loan losses
- Loans written off
Investmants {at amertised cost)
- Allowance for investments
- Investrents written off
Other financial assets
- Allowance for douktful assets
~ Other write off
Tetal

27 Other expenses

(a) Rent, taxes and energy costs

(b} Repairs and maintenance

[¢) Director's fees. allowances and expenses

(d) Auditor’s fees and expenses

(&) Legal ana professional charges

f} Insurance

(g Service provider fegs

th) Other expenses (Refer note below)
Total

Note -
() Auditors’remuneration (excluding Goods & Service Tax):

{a) As quditors - Statutory audit

th) As audtors - Tax cudit

(c) For other services

{d) Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
Total

(i} Corporate social responsibility

The prescribed CSR expenditure required to be spent during the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024 as per the Companies Act, 2013 is NIl In view of average net

(T In crores)
For the year ende For the year anded
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- 2550
[s2e] ol
002 (820
294 -
306 2562
(€in crores)
For the year endad For the year andad
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4978 269
21899 28268
Q o1¢)]
26877 28538
(2 In crores)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
@00 152}
= fnon
- 1ol
- o}
0.03 0
(2.97) (152)
{F In crores)
For the yeor ended For the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
o2 -} 02zt
038 035
o3 030
0.28 027
1.25 097
0.04 004
105 109
Q.44 Q47
391 370
(T in crores)
Fer the year ended For the yeor ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[01):) o)1)
001 £0z
007 007
0.02 0
0.28 027

profits of the Company being NI under section 198 of the Act)for three immediately preceding financal years No amount has been spent by the Cormpany on

construction § acquisiton of an asset There were no CSR transactions with er contributions to any related parties kstedin Nete 34
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28 Income faxes
a} Income tax expense recognised in staterment of profit and loss

Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on prefits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total curront tax expense

Deferred tox
Decrease/ (increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decreaseli increase m defored tax labibties
Total deferred tax expense/tbenefit)
Income Tax expense

b;

o

Reconciliation of the income tax expenses and accounting profit
Reconcilialion of the incame rox expense and the accounting profit multiphed by Incia’s tax rate

Profit bafore taxes

Statutory tax rate

Income tax expensas colculated ot statutory tax rate

Tox effect of the amount which are not taxable in cdledating taxable income .
- Deferred tax assets rof recognised becausa realization is not probable

- Others

Income fax expensef(credit) recognised for the year at effective tax rate

©) Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year enclad March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

(¥ in crores)
For the yeor endled
Morch 31, 2024

104.37

10437

10437

For the yeor ended
March 31, 2025
47879
25.168%

{Zin crores}
For the year ended
March 31, 2024

(119.68}
25168%

120.50

{3012

(120,50}
104.37

3012

104.37

(¥ incrores)

Opening balance

Defarred tax assets:

Property, plant & equipment - Accumulated depreciation -
Expenses deductible in future years -
Provisions for impairment aliowences on finaneial assets -
Compensated absences and refremant benefits dlawable on payment
basis

Others -

Recognised in

staternent of profit  Closing balance
and ioss

Totdl deferred tax assats -

Deferred tax licbllities.

Fair Valuation of financ:al assets measured at FVTOCT and FVTPL -
Income to be taxed on actual receipt basis -
Sourcing comrmssien claimed onincurrence basis -
Cthers -

10437

Total deferred tox liabilities s

10437

Net assets/(iicbilities) =

{104.37)

d) Amounts recognised directly in equity

Thera was noinceme or expenses for current year and previous year for wheh tax impact has been routed through reserve

e) Tax losses

As at Mareh 31, 2025, unrecogrised deferred tax assets amounted fo NIl (As at March 31, 2024 - % 1001 crores) which can be o
286.39 crores (As of March 3. 2024 - % 25522 crores) which can be carried forward upto a spectfied period. These relate
ond business losses The deferred tax asset has not been recogmsed on the basis that ifs recovery 15 not probatle in the

Unrecogrized deferred tax assets expre urtiized based on the year of orgination as follows:

Mareh 31, 2026
March 31, 2027
March 3, 2028
March 31, 2029
March 31, 2030
March 31, 203
March 3), 2032
March 31, 2033
Thereatter
Totd

Amount
i crores)

18.00
i14.23
8.i8
3418
2401
4642
6722
7415

28639

arned forward indefimtely and ¥
primarily to depreciation carry forwards
foreseeable future
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29 Earnings per share

Basic and diuted earnings per equity share are computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 - Earnings per share Bosic earnings per equity share are computed by diiding

net profit after tax by the weighted average numiber of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The dluted earnings per equity share 1s computed by dividing the net profit affer tox as adusted for dividend related to diutive potential equity shares by the weighted
average numiber of equity shares and weighted average number of dilutive potental equity shares autstanding durng the yaar, except where the resuli are ant-dlutive

The followng table sets forth, for the year ndicated, the computation of earnings per share.

((® in crores), except per shore data)

Particulars For the yeor ended For the year ended
March 3], 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Basic
Net profit / loss) attributable to equity share holders (Refer Nete 1) 3107 (26304
Weighted average no of equity shares outstanding 1.741,593,442 1741593442
Bask: earnings per share (¥) 133 {151}
Diluted
Net profit / (less) attributable to equity share holders (Refer Note 23107 (26304)
Weighted average no of equity shares outstanding 1.741.593,442 1.741,593.442
Diluted earnings per share (¥} 133 135l
Face value per share () 10.00 (e]si4]
Nate () - Caleutation of net profit attributable to equity shore holders
Profit f (loss after tax as per statement of profit and loss 37442 {11968}
Less « Distrbution made to holders of perpetual instrurments (14335} (143 36)
st profit { (loss) attributable to equity share holders 23107 126304)
30 Segment

The Compary. being a Core Invastment Compary has beon aperating only in one segmont vis investng activitios and the oporations being only i India, the disclosurs

requrements of Ind AS 108 Segment Reporting are not applicable

31 Disclosure in respect of Operating leases

Company os lessor- Operating Leases

The Company has given office premises under operating fease. The Company has recagnised kease rental incorme from leasing of office premises amounting to € 4.54
crares (March 31. 2024 T 454 crores) in the Statement of Profit and Lass Although she nisks associated with nghts that the Company retains in underlying assets are not
considered to be sgnficant, the Company employs strategies to further minimize thesa risks For example. ensuring all contracts include clauses requiring the lessee to

cormpensate the Company when a property has been subjected to excess wear-and-tear during the lease term
32 Contingent liabilities and commitments

1) As at March 31, 2025. the company doss not have any contingent | abilties (As af March 31, 2024: Nil}
(i) Commitments: Loan comrmitment as at March 31 2025, is  794.35 crores (As ot March 31 2024, ¥ 123100 crores)

33 Other Statutory Information

Vi

vii

wiii

There 1s no proceedings iImhated/pending against the Company for benami property under the Benami Transachions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of
1988) and the rules made thereunder as ar Mareh 31, 2025, and as af March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2025, borrowings from banks or financic! institutions on the basis of security of current assets is Nil (March 31, 2024. nil).
The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bonk or financial institution or any lender.

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 21, 2024, the Company did not have any transactions with the companies struck off under
section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Compantss Act, 1956

There are no charges or satisfaction yet fo be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the stafutory pericd as af March 31, 2023, and ot
March 31,2024

As per Companies (Restriction on nurmber of layers) Rules, 2017, Non-Banking Financicl Comparves are exempted from restriction on number of
layers

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrewed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to
any other person(s) ar entitylies). including foreign entities (Infermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or ctherwise)
that the Intermediary shall () directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (i) provide any guarantee, security ar the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enfity(ies). including foreign enhties (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall (i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behdlf of the Funding Party (Ulfimate Beneficiaries} or (i) provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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34 Reluted party disclosures

(a} Related parties and their relatonship (as defined under Ind AS -24 Related Party Disclosure)
. Hekling Company: Tata Motors Limited

I Subsidiaries
Tata Motors Finance Limited tcoases to be a subsidiary we f. Aprl 01, 2024, (refer note 40{an)
TMF Business Services Limited

. Cther related parties with whem transactions harve taken place during the curent and previous year
() Fellow subsidiaries, ossociates and Joint arrangerments within the Group

Tata Maotors Global Services Limited (formerly known os TML Business Services Limited)

Tata Technologies Lirmited

Tatg Motors Insurance Brokingand Advisory Services Limited

Tata Cumrrins Private Limired

(i} Tata Sons and its subsidiaries and Joint arrengemnents
Tata Sons Private Limited
Tata AlG General Insurance Company Limited

IV. Key Management personnel:

Mr Nasser Munjes, Independen’ Director and Chairman

Mr P 8 Balaji - Non-Executive Drector

Mrs Versha Purandare - Independent Director

Mr NV Sivokumar - Independent Directar

Mr. Shyam Mani - Non-Executive Director (upte August 31 2023

Mr. Samrat Gupta - Nen-Exseutive Director {upto October 15, 2024)
Mr P S Jayakumar, Independent Director {upto November 7, 2023
Mr Dhimaon Gupta - Non-Executve Directar (upte December 23. 2024)
Ms. Riani Gangar ~ Chief Finencid Officer (upto Navember 30, 2024)
MrAmit Mitral - Chief Financiol Officer (from December |, 2024 to April 15, 2025)
Mr Mohit Agarwal - Chief Finanoal Officer twef Aprills, 2025)

Mr Vinay Lavannis - Company Secretary {upto March 3), 2025)

Mr Anand Bang. Manager

Mr Neeraj Dwivedi ~ Company Secretary (we f Apri 1, 2025)

(&) The fallowing table summarizes related-party transactions for the yecr endedf as at March 31, 2025.

¥ in crores)
Other Relafed

Holding Company Subsidiaries Jeint Venhure Perties Total
Q) Transactions during the year
Rent income = 002 - - 002
Interest ncome on channel fnaneng / Loan / bands - L - 190 19C
Expenses for support services (ind rembursement of 010 . . 047 057
expenses) (Refer note (1))
Loans and advances recovered - b - 365.56 36556
Inter corporate deposits placed - 22165 - - 22168
inter corporate deposits recovered 11800 285.00 N [ 403.00
Inferest mcome on inter corporate deposits ploced 1.2 2330 4 - 24.31
Investment in equity share caprital 001 - 00t
Exercise of put aption on Hybnd perpetual bonds 50000 - - - 500.00
Interest expense on inter corporate deposits accepted 49.26 o - - 4926
Inter corporate deposits accepted 2,940.00 E B - 2,940.00
Infer corporate depasits repad 79500 - - E 795.00
b} Closing Badance
Arnount receivable in respect of n'or corporate
P P P - 20565 - - 20568
Amount payable in respect of nter company deposit 214500 - . - 2145.00
Amourt payable others 0I5 - = 001 Q.16
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() The following table summarises related-party fransactions for the year ended/ os at March 31, 2024,

(Zin croras)
Holding Cernpany Subsidiaries Joint Venture theP ] R!. elsatod Totd

a) Transactions during the year
Rent income: - 454 - E 454
Interast income on channel financing / Loan 5 = E 3039 3039
Interest incorme onunsecured Tier-ll debenture - 5817 : - 5817
Expenses for support services (ircl. reimbursement of 008 109 _ 047 16
expenses) (Refer note (1))
Othar expenses = = - 008 008
Loans and advances giver = E E 559394 559394
Loans and advances recovered - - - 6061.55 6056155
Inter corperate deposits placed 1800 67200 = E 79000
Inter corporate deposits recoverod - 70300 - - 70300
Interest ncome on inter corporate deposits placed 0g2 2810 - - 2812
Interast expense oninter corporate depesits acceptad = 2469 - = 269
Inter-Carporate Deposits ploced - 74000 = = 74000
inter corporate deposifts accepted - 70000 F - 70000
b) Closing Bakance
Arnount receivable in respect of inter corporate 1800 25000 _ . 38700
deposits
Amount recevable others E 45 B - 045
Armount recewable n respect of rterest accrued on
deposit & nvestments : PO : - E257
Amount receivable m respect of debenture - 600 00 E - 6Q0.00
Arnount payable in respect of inter company depaosi = 8500 e - 8500C
Amount receivable - credit substitutes - - - 36393 36393
Arnaunt receivable in respect of interest accrued -
credit substitutes b - N 162 162
Arrount payable others on 028 = on .51

Notes:

{1 Inclucies amount cross charged by subsidianies for support services and remuneration to Key Managenal Persennel

() Investments in eptionally converfible zera-coupon debenturas of T 835 crores and equity sheres of € 264 crores In Loginomic Tech Sclutions Prvate Limited
{"TruckEasy") was written off during the year ended March 31, 2024,

Terms and conditions of fransaction with related parties:
The transaction with related porties are made in the normal course of business and on terms aquivalent to thosa that prevallin arm's length transacfions

(e) Key management personnel remuneration:

{¥in crores)
For the yeor ended  For the year ended
HomioHors Marchal, March 31,
2025 2024
Sitting fees paid 1o ndependent drectors o3 Q30
35 Reconiliation of movernent in borrowings te cash flow from financing activities
(R in crores)
’ Exchange Amortisationcfloon  As at Mereh 3),
Particulors Asat April01, 2024 Cash Fows (net) Differ origination costs 2005
Dbt Securfies 343848 (2,355.57) = 3377 11608
Borrowings {other than Debt secunties) 8500 206000 N = 214500
Total Liabiities from Financing Activities 3.52348 (295.57) . 337 3.26108

Note: Debit securihies includes commercial papers and zero-coupon bonds for which the discounting charges paid is ¥ 37.92 crores and premium charges paid of ¥
&62.21 crores respectively on the repayment date is shown in the finance cost in cash flow statements

{¥in crores)
Exchange Amortisation of loan  As af March 3],
Particulcrs Asat Apri 0L 2023 Cash Flows (neh) Diff ofiginaticn costs 2024
Debt Securties 348643 (42870) 3 180.75 3.43848
Borrowings (other than Debt secunties) 4500 4000 - 4 8500
Totdl Liabtities from Fincncing Activities 373143 {388 70) - 180.75 3.52348

Note: Debt securties includes commeraal papers and zere-coupon bonds for which the discounting charges pard 15 % 88,95 crares and premium charges pad of  Ni
crores respectively on the repayment date is shown in the finance costin cash flow statements

27



TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 Fair value medasurernents
Financidl Instruments by categories

{ZIncrores)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Ferticuiars Amortised Armortised
FYTPL o FVTPL cost
Financial Assets:
{a) Investrments
- Mutual funds 5613 = - :
- Dabt securitios - 600.00 = 600.00
- Equity instrument E 3 - =
(b) Loans - 14528 E 74955
(¢} Cash ond casn equivalents = 28 N G2
{d} Other pank balances = - = 104 25
(e} Trode Recevables - - z 048
(fy Other financial assets = 804853 - 3094
Total 5613 879659 o 149443
Financial liokilities:
{a) Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) = 214500 = 8500
() Debt securities b 11608 - 343848
(¢} Trade payables = Q.39 E Q78
{d) Cther financial labilities - 2604 5 4815
Total - 3,287.51 - 357238
Fair valua hierarchy

Set out below. Is @ comparisan by class of carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's finuncial essets/liabilites, other than these with the carrying ameounts that are

reasonable approxirmations of farr volues

As at March 31, 2025

(Fin crores)

Partc
- Carrying valug Fair voluse Levali Level 2 Level3 Total
(&) Financial fiabilties measured at
amortised cost for which fair valus is
disclosed
() Borrowings 214500 2145.00 = 214500 = 24500
(1} Debt Securmies 111508 111281 = 11281 B 111981
Total 3.26108 3.264.81 - 3,254.81 - 326481
{b) Finoncial assets measured at fair valus
through profit & loss
0} Mutual funds 5613 5613 5413 - i 5613
(1) Other financial asset 8.016.62 801662 - = 8016.62 8.015.62
Total 8,016.62 B.016.62 B - 8.016.62 80662
(¢) Financid assets measured ot arrortised
cost for which fair volue Is disclosad
Loansg 145.25 145.25 B 145.25 - 145.25
Totd 145.25 145.25 - 145,25 N 14525
{Zincrores)
g As at March 31, 2024
rHcukrs
Fa Corrying volus Fair value Lavel1 Level 2 Leve!3 Totdl
(a) Financicd fiobilities measured ar
amertised cos? for which fair value s
disclosed
) Borrowings 85.00 8500 = 8500 = 8500
N Debt Secunties 2,54219 253585 - 253685 - 2.536 85
Toial 262719 262185 - 262185 - 242185
() Financial assets measured af fair vaiue through
profit & loss
Investrents
- Mutual funds = 3 - - = N
Total - I N N - =
(¢} Finoncial assets medsured af erontised cost
for which fair volue is disclosed
Loans 74955 74955 - 38545 36410 74955
Total 74555 74955 = 38545 36410 74955
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The categories used are as follows:

Quoted prices inan active market (Level 1) Thislevel of herarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices in active markets for idenhical
assets or labilities This category consists of mutual fund invasirnents

Valuotion technigues with observable inputs (Level 2) This level of hierarchy includes finencial ossets and kabitties, measured using nputs other than quoted prices
neluded within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or lability, erther drectly (e as prices) or indirectly (ie denved from prices).

Valuation techniques w.th significont uiobservable mpuis (Level 3) This level of hierarchy includes financidl assets and Labiites measured using inputs that are not based
on observable market dota (uncbsorvatile Inputs) Fair values are determined n whole or in parf, using o valuation model based on assumptens that are neither
supported by prices from observable curant markst fransactions in the same instrumant nor cre they based on availlable market data

There has been no transfers betweanlevel 1. level 2 and level 3 for the year ended Maorch 31, 2025, and March 31 2024
Valugtion technique used to determine fair value of fincincial instruments

The fair value of borrowings 1s estimated by discountng expected future cash flows, using a discount rate equivalent to the risk-free rate of return, ad;ustecd for the credit
spread censiderad by the lenders for mstruments of simdar matunty and eredit quality are classified in level 2

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the far value of its financial instruments. Hawever, there are mherent linutations in any estimation techniaue Therefore.
for substanniclly all financialinstruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarly ndicative of cll the amaounts thot the Company could have reclised

or paid in safe fransactions as of respective dates. As such. the fair value of the fimancial instruments subsequent 1o the respective reporfing dates may be different from
the amounts reported at each year end

Fair value of financial assetsfliabilties measured at amertised cost

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities other than those disclosed in table above are considered fo be the same as their fair values due to the
short-term maturities of instruments or no material differences in the values
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37 Maturity Andlysis of Assets and Liabilities
The table below shows the matunty anclysis of assets and lickxlities accordng fo when they are expected fo be recovered or setftled
(Zin ¢rores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current Nen current Totd Current Non current Totdl

ASSETS
Finencial ossets
Cash and cash eguvalents 28 - 281 921 - g2
Bank Balance other than cash and cash
equivalents - - - 10425 - 10425
Receivables
Trade receivables - = = 043 = 048
Loans 145.25 ~ 145.25 74955 - 74955
investrnents 5613 £00.00 45413 5 791514 791514
Othar financial gssets .57 801595 8.048.53 3057 037 3094
Non-financial cssets
Current tax assets {ret) = 12135 12135 = 2.5 1i0.55
Investrent Property - 737 17.37 - 1773 773
Property, plant and equipment - 039 039 - 0.4) a4l
Other non-f:nancial assets 019 Q05 0.24 Q1R Q.05 024
Toted assets 23595 875612 899207 894 25 8.044.25 8.938.50
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
total cutstanding dues of micro enterprses and on N o 0
small enterprises - : i N
total outstending dues of creditors other than
rmicro emerpnsegs and small enterprises - h 028 i _ o
Debt securities 37539 74069 11608 2.407.48 153100 343848
Borrewings {Other than debt securitiss) 24500 - 2.145.00 8500 - 3500
Cther financials liabiities - 2604 2604 221 26.04 4815
Nor-finameial liabiities -
Current tax liakbilibes (net) 383 - 383 219 - 219
Provisions 007 = 007 012 - 01z
Deferred tax liabilties (net) 10437 - 10437 - - -
Other nen-financidl liabilties 280 - 280 1.39 - 139
Totdl liabities 2,63185 76673 3.398.58 251904 1057.04 357608
Nat (2.395.90) 798939 5,593.4% 11.62479) 5987 21 536242

38 Financial risk monogement

The Company's activities expose it i market risk (including currency nsk, nterest rate sk and other price nsk). credi risk and liquaity risk The Company's risk
management strategies focus on the un-predictability of these elements and seek to minimse the potential adverse effects on s financial performance Centralised
treasury department and risk management department advises on financial risks and the appropricte financiad risk governance framework for the Company and
providas assurance to the Company's sentor management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by apprepriate polcies and procadures and that
financial risks cre identfied, rmeasured and managed in accordance with the Company's pohcies and risk objectives

{A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that @ counterparty will mot meet its oblgations under a financil mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss The Company is
exposed to credi risk from its

- Operating actvities, prirnarily loans ansing from financing activities

~Investing activities. including primarily investrents in dabt securities. preference shares, equity shares and mutual fund schermes, and

- Financing actwities, including term depesits and balances with banks and financial inshitutions and other financial nstruments

Exposure fo Credit Risk

The carrying emount of financial cssets represents the maximum credit exposure. being the tatal of the carryng amount of balances with banks. time deposits with
banks. loans ansing from financing activiies. Investment in debt Instruments. derivative insfruments, trade roceivables and other financial assets exchiding equity
nvestments

Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash aquivalents and deposits with banks/financial institutions s generally low as the said deposits have been made with anks/financicl
mstitution who have been assigned high credit rating by international/domestic rating agencies Credi risk on derivative instrumants 15 generally low as the Company
anfers into derivahve contracts with reputed banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with internally approved financial mstfutions/counter party and primanly nclude mvestments i mtual funds and bank
deposit

None of the Company's cash equivalents, inchiching time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Regarding the trade receivablos, other receivables, mvestment in
preference shares and ofher receivabies are neither impaired nor past due. there were no indlieations as at March 3. 2025, that defaults in payment cbligations will
OCaur,

Loans arising from financing activities and others - Credit quality of fincncial assets and imgairrment loss

The carrying amount of loans represent the maximum credit exposure net of provisien for impairment The maximum sxposure to credit risk was ¥ 20565 crores s of
March 31. 2025 (March 3), 2024 - % 752 55 crores)
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Credit nisk for loans 1s managed by the Company through credit approvdls, establishing credit limits and periodic monitering of the creditworthingss of its customers o
whichthe  Company grants credt ferms in the normal course of business. Loans are unsecured and are denved from customers lecated in India

On account of adeption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses the 3 staging Expected Credit Loss (ECL) madel to assess the impairment gain or loss The model takes into
account a continuing credit evaluatien of Company's custornars' financial condinion, ogeng of laans, the vakue and adequocy of collateral recaved from the customers,
the Company's historical loss expenence; and adiusted for forward Jooking information The Company cefines defoult os an event when there 1s no reasonable
expectation of recovery

The Company rmakes allowances forlosses on its portfolio of loans on the basis of expected future collection from receivables The future collection are estimated on the
basis of past collection trend wirch ore adusted for changes in current circumstances as well as expected changes in collection on acceunt of future with respect to
certain rmgcro scenomic factors

(B} Management of Liquidity risk
Ligudity risk is the risk thal the Company will not be able to meet its finoncial obligations as they become due. The objective of liquidity nsk management 1s te mantam
sufficient  kquidity end ensure that fundls are avalable For use as and when requred The Company manages the tauidity risk by manfoining adequete cash reserves,
barking faclities and reserve borrowng faciliies, by continususly monitoring forecast and actuel cash flows, and by matching the matunity profiles of francial assets and
liabiities The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed depesit and liquid schemes of mutud funds, which carry no/negligible mark to market risks

The table below prowides details regarding the contractudl maturities of financial fiabilities. including estimated interest payments as ot March 31, 2025

(¥ in crores)
Carryingamount  Due inlst year Due in 2nd year Due Inyig'grfo i Due after 5th year Tofém::?nl
Nen-derivatives
Borrowings 24500 214500 = = = 214500
Debt securities 116.08 38932 83133 = - 122065
Trade & Cther payables 039 039 = - - 039
Other financral abilities 26.04 - - - 2604 26,04
Totd 3.287.51 2547 33133 - 2604 3,392.08
The table below provides detalls regerding the contractual maturities of inancial labilities, Including estimated interest payments as at March 31, 2024,
{¥in crorgs)
Camylngomount  Dueinkstyear  Dueinzndyear O '”ﬁ:grm St Due after sthyaar To" confractucl
Norderivatives
Borrowings 8500 9258 - - - 9258
Debt securties 3.43848 2.53288 38932 83133 - 375353
Trade and Other payables Q78 075 e = 073
Other financial Labiites 4815 221 - - 2604 4815
Total 357238 264832 2 83133 2604 3.89501

As per Ligredity Risk Management Framework. Care Investments Companies are exerngt from the applcablity of Ligudity Risk Coverage norms

(C) Management of Markef Risk

Markeat nsk comprises of foreign curency sk and interest rate rsk Interest rate risk anses from varicble rote borrowings that expose the Company's financial
performance, financd position and cash flows to the movement in market rates of interast,

Foreign currency rik
The company is nof exposed to foreign currency exchange risk as ol the financid nstruments are derominated in the funchional currency of the company e Indan
Rupees (INR).

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk s the nsk thot the far value or future cash flows of afinancial nstrument will fluctuate because of changes inmarket rates The Compuany's exposure to

therisk of changes in market rates relates prirnarty to the Cormpany's borrowings with floatingfvaricble interest rates The Company borrow through various
instruments which has float.ng rate! interest rate reset clause which is exposed fo interest rate rigk

As at the end of reporting year. the Company had following variable interest rate borrowings

(Zin crores)
As ot March 3], As af March 3],
2025 2024
Nen-darivates financid liabilities
variable rate borrowings - 60000

Profit or loss is sensitive to Interest expanse from variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in mterest rate Increasefdecrease of 100 basis ponts In nterest rates at
the balance sheet date wolld result n an impact (decreaselincreate in case of profitf (loss} befere tox of 2 Nil and 2 6 00 crores on inceme for the year cnded March
31, 2025 and Mareh 31 2024 respectively

The above sensitiwty analysis ossumes that all other varidbies remain constant and the barrowings outstanding at Trhe reporting date have been outstand ng for the
entire reporting period
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Capital management
The Company's capited management sintended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the mesting of leng-term and short=term goals of the Compary

The Company determines the ameunt of capitel required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic nvestrment plans The funding
requirements are rmet through equity, convertible and non-convertible debt secunties and other long-termishori-term borrowings The Company's palicy 15 aimed at
comiination of short-term and long-term borrowings The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of regulatory capital rato viz. Capital 1o Risk-weighted
Assets Ratio (CRAR)

The management monitors the return on capral as well as the level ¢f dividends 1o sharaholders The Company's goal 15 to continue o be able *o provide return to
shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future penods

Total debt includes ol long and short-term barrowings as disclesed In notes 14 and 15 o the financial statements,

Balow are the key regulatery caprtol ratios at the year end dates

(& Incrores)
As at March 3, As af March 31,
2025 024
CRAR (%) 41.40% 3582%
CRAR - Tier | caprtal (%) 4.40% 3582%
CRAR = Tier Il capitol {%) 0.00% 0.00%
Amount of Subordinated Debt raised as Tier Il Capital ( 1n - -
crores)
Amount raised by 1ssue of Perpetual Dabt Instruments (% in - u
crores)
Laudity Coverage Ratio NA NA
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TMF HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF STANDALCNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Additional disclosures given in terms of the Non Banking Financial Companies - Systemically Important Non Deposit Taking Company and
Deposit Toking Company (Reserve Bark) Directions, 2016 (o5 armended) and RBI Circular RE2020-21/24, Dok (NBFC) (D) CC. No.
117/03.10.001/2020-21 dated August 13, 2020 applicable for all Core Investment Companies.

(C) Compcnents of ANW and] other related information

Asat Merch 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
1 ANWas a % of Risk Weighted Assets 41.40% 3582%
2 Unrechzed appreciation in the book value of quoted investments {% In crores) al =
3 Diminutien in the aggregate book value of quoted investments (¥ in crores) 4 g
4 lLeverage Roho 137 151
(D} Investment in other CICs
(i} Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by one CIC in ancther CIC lincluding name of CICs) Nat Applicable
i Number of CICs with their names wherem the direct or indrect capital contr bulion exceeds 10% of Cwned Funds Not Applicable
() Number of CICs with their names whereir the direct or ind rect canifal contribution is less than 10% of Qwned Funds Not Applicable
(E) Off balance sheet exposure
Asat Morch 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
1 Off balance sheet exposure (Z n crores) 29435 1.23100
2 Fnancial Guarantee as a % of fotal off-balance sheet exposure 100% 100%
3 Non-financial Guarantee as a% of total off-balance sheet exposure Nil Nl
4 Off balance sheet exposure to cverseas subsidiaries Net Applicable Not Applicable
5 Letter of Comfort issued to any subsidiary Nil [\
{F) Investrents
¥ in crores)
As af March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
1 Vdlue of Investments
() Gross Value of Investments
a) Inincic 72551 791514
b} Qutside india - -
(1) Provisions for Depreciafion
a} InIncha 6938 =
b} Qutside Inda E
) Net Vafue of Investments
a} In Indica 65613 791514
b) Outside India - -
2 Movement of provisions held fowards deprec:ation on investments =
0} Opening balence = 1ol
(1) Add . Provisions made durng the yeor 69.38 -
(i) Less Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year = noi
{iv) Closing boknce 69.38 -
{G) Business Ratios
As at March 31, Asat March 3],
2025 2024
1 Returnon Equity (RoE) Qo7 (223%)
2 Returnon Assets (RoA) 004 (137%)
3 Net profit per employes (% in crores) 000 000

For the cormputation of RoA, net assers have been consicerad. Net Assets have been derived in line with the guidance in paragraph 3 (eviiit of the RBI Master
Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 tuedated as on October 5, 2021)

(H) Provisions and Contingencies
Breok up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies' shawn in the statement of profit and loss
(¥ incrares)
Asat March 3, As at March 3),
2025 2024
Allowances for loan losses 5740 (152}
Allowance for investments 69.38 non
Investments written off - nel
Alloweance for doubtful assets - 0
Other write off 003 0
() Concentration of NPAs
Zincrores)
5 Ex g asa % of total
i poss assets
Totd Exposure to top five NPA accounts Nil Nil
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()) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migrations of ratings In respect of all credit facilities and debt instruments during the year:

instrurnents
Rating Your Long-termbank  Short-term bank Secured Non-
agency focities faciitios convertila dol og UnsecuwredNCDs  Comenercid pupers  Perpetudl debt
i CRISIL March 31 2026 NA NA NA CRISIL AA+/STABLE CRISIL AT+ CRISIL AA+/STABLE
March 31, 2024 NA NA& NA CRISIL AAPCSITIVE CRISIL Al+ CRISIL AAIPOSITIVE
2 eaA March 31, 2025 NA NA NA ICRA AA+/ STABLE ICRA Al+ NA
March 31 2024 |CRA AA [ STABLE Na NA ICRA AAJ STABLE ICRA Al+ NA
3 CARE March 31, 2025 NA N.A NA NA CARE Al+ NA
March 31, 2024 CARE AA+/ STABLE CARE Al+ NA CARE AA+/ STABLE CARE Al+ NA
(K) Sectoral exposure
As at March 3, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Totdl Expostire Total Exposure
lincludes on balance Percentage of Gross  {includes on baance per‘::;z?: g&m
Sectors sheat and off- Grass NPAs NPAste totol exposwre  sheet and ofi- Gross NPAs exposure in that
balance sheat in that sector balance sheet P -
oxposure} exposure)
1 Agriculture and Alled Activities - - N = = -
2 Industry - - < - = a
Tetal - - - B - -
3 Services 20000 . - 238356 = =
Total $00.00 - - 2,383 56 - E
4 Personal Loans - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
5 Others, if any - - - - - k:
L} Exposure to Capital Market
(¥ in crores)
Particukxs Asat March 31, Asat March 31,
2025 2024
Direct ivestment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertble debentures and units of aquity 6938 731514
0 oriented mutuat funds the corpus of which is not exclusively nvested :n corporate debt;
Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean besis to individuals for > 4
iy mvestment inshares (including IPOs 7 ESOPs). corvertible bonds, corvertible debentures, and urits of
equity ortented mutual funds,
Advances for any other purposes whera shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or urits - -
ik o equity onented mutucl funds are taken as primary security,
Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collareral security of shares or = .
converfible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity onented mutual funds 1e where the
(v} primary security other than shares | convertble bonds / converticle debenturas / units of equity
oriented mutudl funds does not fully cover the advances;
Secwed and unsecured advances fo stockbrokers and guarantees 1ssued on behalf of stockbroxers - o
¥) and market marers,
Loans sanctioned fo corporate aganst tha secunity of shares / bonds / debenturas or other secunities or - -
{viy on clean basis for meeting promaters contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of
rasing resources.
(v Bridge loans 1o companies against expected equity flows / ssues, - i
Underwriting commitments taken up by the barks in respact of primary ssue of shares or convertible - -
040 onds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds,
O} Financing fo stockbrokers for margn trading, 5 n
All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds - =
() Category |
O (n) Category I
tiii} Category Il
Total exposure to capital market 69.38 731514

M) Disclosure on iquidity risk under RBI/2019-20/88 DOR.NEBFC (PD} CC, NoJ02/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019 on Liquiciity Risk
Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Cornpanies.

i. Funding Cencenlration based on significant counterparty {both depasits and borrowings}
No. of Significant Counterpartios
Five (5 Nos) '

ii. Top 20 large deposits { % of Tetal Deposits)
Mot Applicaile

{¥in crores)
326108

% of Totd Deposits % of Total Lickilities

NA

95.95%
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iil. Tep 10 Borrowings (as a % of Total Borrowings)

i ) % of Totd
Particulars {®incrores) Borrowings
Ten (10 Nos) 313594 96.16%
iv. Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product
Name of the instrument (& in crores) % of Total Liabiities
Commercial Paper (CP) - Q00%
Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 116,08 3284%
Inter-Corporate Deposits (ICD) 24500 =<1k
Total 3.261.08 P5.95%
v. Stock Ratios
(¥Fincroras)
Particulars Totd Public Funds Totdl Liabilities Total Assets
Commercdd papers as a % of ' 0.00% 0.00% C00%
Non Convertible Debentures (orignd maturity of less than one year! as a % of NA NA, NA
Other short-term fiabilities os & % of 44.58% 66.39% 2509%
Note;

In*arest accrued but not due has been excluded fram Borrowings/Total Puslic funds

vi. Institutional set-up for liquidity sk management
TMF Holdings Limited (TMFHLY hes constituted an Asset Liabllity Supervisery Committee (ALCO} to oversee lquidty risk management ALCO consists of Non-Executive
Directors. Manager (KMP), Chief Financial Officer, Chief Digital and Marketing Officer. Chief Credit Officer, Chief Risk OFficer and Hegd « Treasury The ALCO mestings are
held every quarter TMFHL has a Risk Management Committee (RMC). o sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks 1o which the Company is exposed
ncluding liquidity risk managemen: (LRM} ALCO's views on lquidity and asset liabihty management are presented to RMC for its independent review on a quarterly basis
The ALCO and RMC also updates the Board ot regular intervals

For the previous year i.e. Financicl Year 2023-24

() Funding Concentrettion based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

No, of Significant Caunterparties ®incrores) % of Total Deposits % of Total Liabilties
Edeven (Il Nos) 3446853 NA F699%
(i) Top 20 large deposits { % of Tota! Daposits)
Not Applicable .
{iii) Top 10 Borrowings (as a % of Totd Borrowings)
; % of Totd
.- (Fincrores) Borrowings
Ten (10 nos) 342219 9713%
(iv) Fundiing Concentration bassd on sigrificant instrument / product
Nerne of the [nstrument (T incroves) % of Total Liabiltles
Cornmercicl Papar {CP) 89629 25006%
Nan Convertble Debentures (NCDs) 2.54219 7109%
Inter-Cerporate Deposits (ICD) 8500 238%
Total 352348 98.53%
(v) Stock Ratios
(ZTincrores)
Particulars Total Public Funds Total Liabilities Total Assets
Commercicl papers as a % of 15.84% 2306% 10.03%
Man Convertible Debentures (origined matunty of less than one year) as a % of NA NA NA
Other short-term laoilities o5 a % of 3048% 4538% 1815%

Note:

Interest accrued but net due hos been excluded from Borrowings/Total Puble funds

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk monagement

TMF Holdings Limited (TMFHL} has an Asset Licbility Supervisory Cormmittee (ALCO), a Board level Sub-committee fo oversee liquidity sk management ALCO consists

of Independent Director. Managing Director and Group Chief Financial Officer. The ALCG meetings are held once in 3 months. TMFHL

has a Risk Management

Commitiee (RMC), a sub-committee of the Board, which oversees overall risks to which the Company 1 exposed including liquidity nsk management ALCO's views on

lquaity and asset loblity raragement are presented to RMC for ifs independent review on a quarterly basis The ALCO and RMC

intervals

dlso updates the Board at regular
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(N) Disclosure on Asset Classification and Provisions as per RBI notification RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PDNGI09/2210.106/2019-20 dated 13th

March 2020 (as amended)
. Assot classification  Gross Casrying Loss Allowances Nat Carrying Provisions required  Difference betwesn
Asset Classfication ssper Rl asper Ind AST0?  Ameunt os per ind  {Provisions) as required Amount as per IRACP norms  Ind AS 109 provisions
Norms for financial year AS under Ind AS 109 and IRACP norms
2024-25
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 7=4-6
Performing Asset
Standerd Asset Stage-1 20565 6040 14525 082 5958
Stage-2 - - - - -
Subtotal 205565 6040 145.25 032 5958
Mon=Performing Assat (NPA)
SubStandard Stage-3 - - i - -
Doubtful up to | Year Stage-3 = - - - -
1ta3 Years Stage-3 - = = = =
More than 3 Years Stage-3 & - a - o
Subtotal of Doubiful - - . - -
Less Stage-3 - - g E =
Subtotal of NPA - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, Stage-l - - -
locin commitments, ete. which are h -
inthe scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage-2 = _ - = -
covered under current Income
Recogrition. Asset Classification
and Provisiening [IRACP) norms Stage-3 : - - : -
Subtotal s - - - -
Stage-] 20565 6040 4525 082 5958
Stage-2 - = = - o
TOTAL Stoge-3 . - - - -
205.65 60.40 14525 082 59.58
. Asset classification Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions required  Difference between
Asset Classification s per Bl gsper Ind AS109  Amolntess perInd  (Proviskons) as required Amount o5 por IRACP norms  Indt AS 109 provisions
Nerms for financid year As under Ind AS 109 and IRACF norms
2023-24
] 2 3 4 5=3-4 7=4-6
Performing Asset
Standard Asset Stage-| 752586 30 74955 301 -
Stage-2 - - N - -
Subtotal 75256 30! 749.55 301 -
Non-Performing Asset (NPA)
SubStandard Stage-3 = S - B -
Doubtful up to ! Year Stage-3 - E: S & 5
1to 3 Years Stage-3 = o 0 - =
Mare than 3 Years Stage-3 = - - - -
Subtotal of Doubtful . - N - =
Loss Stage-3 E - S - -
Subtotal of NPA - - B _ =
Other iterns such as guarantees Stage-| - - -
Ingr commutrrents, efc which are - -
inthe scope of Ind AS 109 but not Stage-2 - = _ = _
covered under current Income
Recognition. Asset Clessification
ond Prowvisioning (RACP) narms Stage-3 . = - N B
Subtotal = - - - -
Stage-| 75256 30 749385 301 2
TOTAL Stage-2 = = = i 3
Stage-3 o - = - -
752.56 3o 749.55 301 -
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40 Other disclosures

(@) No penaities were impesed by RBI and other regulaters during the year ended March 31, 2025. (year ended March 31, 2024, % NIl
(b) The Company does not have any exposure in redl estate sector during the year ended March 31, 2025, {year ended March 31, 2024, Z Nil)
(€} The Company being CIC. the prudenticl exposure Imits in respect to single borrower fimit / group borrower imit 1s not applicable

td) The Company is only registered with Reserve Bark of India as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Teking Nan-Banking Financic!
Company as Care Investrment Company (CIC)

(e} The Company has not entered info any derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2025 or holds any exposure in respect of derivative

transactions as on March 31, 2025, (year ended March 31, 2024- T Nily

{f) The Compeny has not drawn down any amounts from the reserves during the year ended March 3. 2025 except as disclosed in Statement
of Changes in Equity (year ended March 31, 2024:  Nil).

(g) The Company has not sofd any Fnancial Assets to Securifisation / Reconstruction Cormpany for Asset Reconstruction during the year ended
March 3i, 2025 {year ended March 31, 2024 Z Nil)

{h) There are ne loans to directors and its relatives, entities associated with directors and their relotives & senior officers and their relatives

i) The Cornpany has not purchased any non-performing finencial assets during the year ended March 31, 2025 (year ended March 31, 2024, 2 Nil)

() Overseas assets {for those with joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad). The Company does not have any jeint venfure or subsidiary abroad,
hence not applicable.

(k) Custormer Complaints:

The were nil custorner complants during the year due to ne customer interaction,

(b The amount of unsecured advances stood ar # 14525 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 749,54 crores). Further, the Company has not granted unsecured
advances against collateral of intangible securities such as charge over the rights. licenses or authority,

{m} The Company has not obtained any Registration/ licences autharisation. by whatever rame called. from other financial secter regulators.
{m The Company hes not traded/invested in crypio currency or virtual currency for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

(0} There is no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, To mitigate the risk arsing in case foreign currency
exposure, the company undertakes derivative transactions for hedging foreign currercy transactions on balance sheet assets and liakilities
as per its approved Risk Management Policy. The palicy has mandated 100% hedge for foreign exposures The company has identfied list of
banks to enter into hedging transaction with an aggregate fotal limit and tenure as per the pelicy

{p} There 1s no breach of covenant for any borrowings undertoken by the Company

() The Beard of Directors of TMFL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. at its meeting held on June 4, 2024, approved (subject to the
requisite regularory and other approvals) a Scheme of Arrangement for amalgamation of the TMFL with and info TCL with appointed date
of April 1. 2024. The Scheme has been approved by the NCLT, Mumba Bench on May 1. 2025 TMFL and TCL has received dll other
necessary regulatory approvals and the scherne is effective from Moy 8, 2025. The Company wilf receive equity shares in the ratio of 37100,
12.18.38.67.495 equity shares having face value of 100 each of Tata Capital Limited in lieu of 49,69,39.176 equity shares having face volue of
100/~ of TMFL The Company has accounted for transfer of net assets in accordance with the aecounting prirciples generally accepted in
India and has recognised the excess of consideration received (Investmant value) over the carryng valus of net assets fransferred as ot April
12024, amounting to ¥ 77085 crores - statement of profit or loss

(r) The Company has reported ¥ 641.07 crores under exceptional items of income and expenditure during the year ended March 31, 2025, out of
which ¥ 128,78 crores i1s towards provision of impairment of loons and nvestment in TMFBSL and ¥ 770.85 crores is towards disposal on

account of merger of TMFL to TCL. (Refer Note 40(q)) (yeor ended March 31, 2024 E NI

(s) The company does not have any divergence in provisioning and gross NPA regorted by compony and assessed by RB! during i's last inspection,

(1) No modified cpinion{s} or other reservation(s! has been mentioned in the audit report or limited review report inrespect of the financial resulrs
of any previous financial year or quarter which has an impact on the profit or loss of the reportable period
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(W} There are no transactions which are not recorded In the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed as incorme during the year

ended

March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

{v) Current period figures are shown in bold prints
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Schedule to the
Balance Sheet of a non-depaosit taking Core Investrnent Company

(Disclostro es per Annexure || of Mester Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direchions, 2016)

(¥ incrores)
= : Amount
Liabilities side: Amount cutstanding overdue

(NLeans end advances availed by the CIC inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures  Secured -

Unsecured (Note 1} 116 08 -

{other than faling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b} Deferred Credits - N
(€} TermLoans F =
(d} Inter-cerporate loans and borowings 214500 -
{e} Commerciol Popers - i
(f} Other Loans

- From ponks = -
- From others i &
- Liability Compenent of compound financial instruments N =

Assets side: Arvount Quistanding
(2)Break-up of Loans and Advances incliding bills receivables fother than those included In {4) below}:
(a)Secured -
(b)Unsecured 14525

(3)Break up of Leased Assets ard stack on hire and other assets towards AFC activities
W) | ease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors
{a) Financigl louse =
(b} Operating leass -

(1) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(o) Assetson hre =
(b} Repossessed Assets -

(iROther foans counting towards AFC actvities
{a} Loans where assets have beenrepossessed -
(b} Loans other than (a) above -
(4}Breck-up of Investments:

Current Investments:
I GQuoted
(i) Shares: (a) Equity =
(b) Preference N

tin Debentures and Bonds 20000

(u} Units of mutual funds 5613

{iv) Government Securilies -

(v} Others -
2 Unquoted

(i} Shares (3) Equity -

(b) Preference -
(i) Debentures and Bords -
i} Units of mutual funds -
{iv) Goverrment Securitigs -
(vi Others -

Long Term Investments:
1 Quoted
(i) Shares {a) Equity -
{b) Prefarence -
(i} Debentures and Bonds -
(i} Units of mutual funds -
(v) Government Securities -

(v} Cthers -
2 Unquoted.
(1} Shares (@) Equity -
{b) Preference =
(i) Debentures and Bonds 40000

() Units of mutual funds L
(iv] Government Securitios -
(v} Others 5
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(5)Borrower group-wise classification of assets financad as In (2) and (3) above ;
Amount net of provisions

{¥in crores)

Category Secrad Unsecured

1 Related Parties
(a} Subsidiaries - 145.25
(b} Comparies inthe same group A -

(c} Other related parties N N

2 Other than Related Parties . =

Totd

14525

Tetel - 145.25

145.25

(Olinvestor group-wise classification of off investments (current and long tarm) in shares and securities (oath guoted and unquoted):

(¥ in crores)

Market Vdue/ Breck up or Book Vakse
fair vakue or NAV (Net of Provision)
1 Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries - =
(b} Companes in the same group - =
(c) Other related parties = o
2 Other than Reloted Parties 65613 65613
Tota 58613 45613
{7)0ther information
(¥incrorgs)
Parficulars Amount

(i} Gross Non-Parformmg Assets
ta) Related parties
{b) Other fnan related parties

{1} Nei Non-Performing Assets
() Related parties
(b} Other than related parties

(i) Assets acqured in satisfaction of debt

Note I' Represents Zero coupen debentures which are gross of dccreted value of premium on redemption and net of unamortised borrowing cost of ¥ 104,58 crores
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